
Meeting of:  Cabinet
Date: Tuesday, 29th October, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5  Minutes 4 - 10

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 1st October 
2019.

Public Document Pack



6  Update on new school sites 11 - 30

A report of the Director of Children’s Services summarising the 
proposed delivery of schools in the Borough.

7  Adoption of Revised Statement of Community Involvement 31 - 36

A report of the Director of Economy that considers the consultation 
responses and proposed changes to the Statement of Community 
Involvement

8  Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022 37 - 49

To seek approval for the Council’s revised Library Service Strategy 
2019 – 2022.

9  Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022 50 - 66

To consider recommending the Corporate Plan 2019 – 2022 for 
approval by the Council.

10  Discretionary Fees & Charges 67 - 101

To consider proposed discretionary fees and charges by service for 
2020/21.

11  Budget Update and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 
2024/25 

102 - 149

To provide an update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.

12  Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 150 - 156

The Cabinet to consider recommendations regarding Savings 
Proposals in order to meet the budget gap for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

13  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 



part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

14  Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 (Private) 157 - 298

To consider specific savings proposals.

15  Lease arrangements for the Coroners Hosted Service 299 - 304

Director of Neighbourhoods to report

16  Rochdale Riverside Occupier Update 

Confidential presentation by Director of Economy

Cabinet Members
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CABINET

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 1 October 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Neil Emmott, 
Emsley, Iftikhar Ahmed, Blundell, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle

OFFICERS: Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Neil Thornton (Director of 
Resources), John Searle (Director of Economy), Andrea Fallon (Director of 
Public Health and Wellbeing), Donna Bowler (Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods), Julie Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), Peter Gregory 
(Economy Directorate) and Alison James (Resources Directorate) 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Cocks, Councillor Dale, Councillor 
Dutton, Councillor O’Rourke, Councillor Meredith, Councillor Rana, Councillor 
Robinson, Councillor Rush, Councillor Smith and Councillor Wazir; one 
member of the public

22 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hartley and Councillor 
Massey.

23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

24 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
The Leader indicated that he had accepted an urgent item of business - Re-
Affirming Delegated Responsibilities to the Integrated Commissioning Board, 
to be considered at Item 10 on the Agenda.

25 MINUTES
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 27th August 2019 be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

26 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT STARKEY STREET / LANGTON STREET 
HEYWOOD - RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE COMMUNITIES, 
REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE
Cabinet considered the receommendations of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to a decision 
that had been made by the Cabinet, at its meeting on 30th July (minute 28: 
Disposal of Land at Starkey Street/Langton Street, Heywood), which had 
subsequently been called-in by Councillors O’Rourke and Rush.

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



The matter had been considered by the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28th August 2019 and the 
following recommendations had been made:-

1. That the matter be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration with the 
following recommendations:

 That Plot of land 2 (adjacent to Hilda Street) be released for 
disposal;

 That Plots of land 1 and 3 be not disposed of and that further 
work be undertaken to assess the potential for future ownership 
of the land;

2. That the way consultation responses on future reports of this nature is 
included be reviewed to ensure that the views of Townships are fully 
incorporated;

3. That it be noted that the Communities Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will undertake a review of the whole 
process for disposals of land as part of their work programme.

Resolved:

1. That the recommendations of the Communities Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee be approved.

Eligible for call in – no 

27 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2019/20
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which provided an 
update on the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of 
July 2019.

Alternatives considered:

Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Resolved:

1. That the forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Revenue, Savings and 
Capital as at the end of July 2019 be noted;

2. That the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests for 2019/20 totalling 
£0.030m, and 2020/21 totalling £0.040m detailed in section 4.1.6. of 
the report be approved;

Page 5



3. That the Health & Social Care Pool Budget position detailed in section 
4.2.of the report be noted.

4. That the net Capital budget increases of £0.069m shown in section 
4.5.2. of the report be noted;

5. That the Capital scheme reductions of £0.601m as detailed in section 
4.5.3. of the report be noted.

6. That the net Capital re-phasing of £5.948m detailed in section 4.5.4. of 
the report be noted;

7. That the funding switches in the Capital Programme for Economy & 
Neighbourhoods detailed in 4.5.5. of the report be approved.

Reasons for the decision:

Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring the financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

Eligible for call in – no 

28 COLLECTION FUND 2019/20
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which provided an 
update on the forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/20 as at the 
end of July 2019.

Alternatives considered:

Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. Effective financial management 
is critical to ensuring that financial resources are received in line with the 
budget, which enables them to be targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 
Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the plan and 
facilitates timely corrective action.

Resolved:

1.  That the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn position be noted.

Reasons for the decision:

The Collection Fund forecast outturn report for 2019/20 is presented to 
Cabinet for noting as part of the budget monitoring process.

Eligible for call in – no 

Page 6



29 CHILDREN'S SERVICES BUDGET STRATEGY
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services which 
outlined the end of year position for 2018/19 in respect of Children’s Social 
Care (CSC) and the actions that are being progressed under a five year 
sustainability strategy to address the current service pressures and restore 
the CSC budget to a balanced position and steady state.

Alternatives considered:

The alternative of doing nothing and managing budget efficiencies through a 
programme of service reduction has been fully considered.  This is not a 
viable option as the Council is required to meet its statutory responsibilities to 
safeguard children. 

The programme of innovations and investment are aimed at meeting this 
responsibility and improving outcomes for children, whilst delivering value for 
money.

Resolved:

1. That the overall investment strategy for Children’s Social Care be 
approved;

2. That the Greater Manchester innovation programme that is being 
progressed as detailed in the report and the risks associated with non-
delivery of the benefits be noted. Cabinet will continue to receive 
detailed progress reports in line with agreed delivery targets and 
milestones;

3. That the unfunded pressure and the continuation of the development of 
the strategy to address this issue be noted;

4. That year 2 funding for stabilisation of the workforce of £880k from the 
Equalisation Reserve be approved.

Reasons for the decision:

The option of doing nothing is not viable, if demand were to continue on the 
current trajectory this would equate to a £46 million overspend by 2023/24. It 
is therefore essential that innovation and investment proposals are 
progressed.

The projects and strategy have been developed through detailed mapping of 
need levels; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; 
reviewing all children in external placements and aligning proposed 
investment to areas of greatest need and demand.  This therefore increases 
the likelihood of achieving the stated aims. 

Page 7



Failure to do so would put the Council at risk of not being able to meet its 
statutory responsibilities both financially and in respect of meeting its 
responsibilities to provide help and protection to the most vulnerable children 
and families. Inherent in this would be reputational risk and risk of “failure” 
through adverse inspection findings. 
Eligible for call in - yes

30 RE-AFFIRMING DELEGATED RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE INTEGRATED 
COMMISSIONING BOARD
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Resources which advised that 
in August 2019 the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) revised its terms of 
reference to reflect the requirements of the health and care system and the 
legal, financial and performance expectations of both the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Council. In light of these changes to the 
terms of reference for the ICB, the Council’s Scheme of Delegation has been 
reviewed.

Cabinet was requested to re-affirm the arrangements between itself and the 
CCG in relation to delegated responsibility for Adult Social Care and Public 
Health related functions (in respect of commissioning relating to Section 75 
agreement and Better Care Fund) to the Integrated Commissioning Board 
(ICB) to act as lead commissioner of the Services outlined in the ICB terms of 
reference.

In considering the report, a Member of Cabinet requested further clarification 
on some of the wording contained within the report. The Director of Resources 
agree to take this matter up with the Member outside of the Committee.

Alternatives considered:

No alternatives have been considered as Cabinet are asked to re-affirm a 
previous decision.

Resolved:

1. That the revised terms of reference for the ICB as of August 2019 be 
noted;

2. That approval be given to revise the Council’s Constitution (Part 3 
Responsibility of Functions), in light of changes to the ICB terms of 
reference;

3. That delegated responsibility to the ICB  be re-affirmed as follows:-

3.2 That the Strategy and Policy development for Health and Care for 
Rochdale Borough is delegated and approved by the Integrated 
Commissioning Board.

3.3 That the allocation of resources set by the Council for Health and 
Social Care be delegated to the Integrated Commissioning Board.

Page 8



3.4 That the Integrated Commissioning Board will have sight of 
budgets in relation to health, social care, public health, adults and 
children’s in order to assure effective commissioning across all 
these areas of business and services.

3.5 That the pooled fund from the CCG and Cabinet continue and that 
Governance and Financial Management be delegated to the 
Integrated Commissioning Board.

3.6 That it be noted that within the Integrated Fund there are aligned 
budgets to which Cabinet and HMR CCG Governing Body will 
retain decision making powers for. Spending of aligned budgets 
will be reported to the Integrated Commissioning Board for 
information.

4. That approval be given to the following delegations to the ICB:-

1 Deliver the high-level commissioning strategy and health & wellbeing 
outcomes for the Borough in order to meet assessed population, 
community and individual need within the financial resources of the 
pooled funds over which the Integrated Commission Board has 
control.

2 Have responsibility for all executive matters relating to the pooled 
funds.

3 To be responsible for the allocation of health, social care and public 
health budgets and how these are spent.

4 To deliver the s75 Agreement in respect of the Better Care Fund, 
and implementation and monitoring of the fund.

5 Make commissioning recommendations to Cabinet (and HMR CCG 
Governing Body) for the financial resources not controlled by the 
Integrated Commissioning Board.

6 Develop, implement and monitor those elements of the contract for 
the Rochdale Care Organisation  (LCO) that relate to the provision of 
services that are subject to the integrated commissioning 
arrangements.

7 Maintain an operational overview and assurance role on behalf of the 
Strategic Place Board to ensure implementation and delivery of the 
agreed high level strategies and outcomes set jointly between HMR 
CCG and Rochdale Borough Council.

8 To ensure plans and processes are in place that all available 

Page 9



resources to support health improvement and people’s quality of life 
are used efficiently and to their full potential. 

9 To assist in the develop of a joint health and wellbeing strategy 
providing an overarching framework and priorities identified for action 
within which commissioning plans for the NHS, social care, public 
health and other health and wellbeing related services.

10 To enable all partners to fully deliver their contribution to the 
Borough’s priorities for health and wellbeing.

11 To deliver coherent and co-ordinated commissioning strategies, for 
the health and wellbeing of residents of the Borough. 

12 To be publicly accountable for services that are directly related to the 
health, social care and public health of the local population. 

13 To ensure all partners fully understand what outcomes the ICB are 
working to and use robust performance management structures to 
measure progress and success. 

14 To enter into arrangements for the acquisition, by lease, licence or 
tenancy for land or property, acquired in support of the Health and 
Wellbeing Agenda; subject to the acquisition being contained within 
an approved budget

15 To surrender any lease, license or tenancy that has become surplus 
to requirements.

Reasons for the decision:

The Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) has been operational since 1st 
April 2018, in light of the revised terms of reference agreed by ICB at its 
meeting in August 2019, Cabinet is requested to re-affirm its delegated 
responsibility to the ICB to aid the future creation of a detailed Scheme of 
Delegation.

Eligible for call in - yes

Page 10



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 29th October 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children's Services
Report Author Fay Davies
Public/Private Document Public

Update on new school sites

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The report summarises the current status of the proposed delivery of both the 
Edgar Wood Academy secondary school at Bowlee in Middleton and the 
Autism Special School in Heywood. 

The report asks Cabinet to approve in principle the revised red-line boundary 
for the Edgar Wood Academy and approve the disposal of the site at Heywood 
Sports Village for the Autism Special School. 

It should be noted that: 

1.3.1 the site at Heywood, for the Autism Special School, currently forms part 
of the site of Heywood Sports Village and is subject to a Lease in favour of 
Rochdale Boroughwide Cultural Trust Limited; and

1.3.2. that the disposal of the site for the Autism Special School is subject to 
Rochdale Boroughwide Cultural Trust Limited (“Link4Life”) and the Council 
completing a Deed of Surrender of part of the Trust’s leasehold interest in the 
Autism Special School Site.

The report also details the procedure by which a trust will be sought and 
awarded the contract to run the Autism Special School. An Equalities Impact 
Assessment has also been completed as required by the process.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

That approval in principle is given to the revised site boundary for the Edgar 
Wood Academy, shown edged red on the Plan in appendix 1, subject to a full 
due diligence exercise and an associated further report to Cabinet. 

That approval is given to the disposal, by way of a 125 year lease, of the site 
currently forming part of Heywood Sports Village, which is shown edged red 
on the Plan at appendix 2, for the purpose of the Autism Special School.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



2.3

2.4

That the Director of Economy and the Director of Resources, acting jointly, be 
given delegated authority for final sign off of the Heads of Term for the Autism 
Special School.

That the Director of Children’s Services is given delegated authority to 
approve the LA suggested proposer trust for the Autism Special School. 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Edgar Wood Academy, Middleton
The proposed new school has been awarded funding from central government 
as part of the Free School Programme. The council has been notified that 
funding for this Wave of schools has been significantly constrained and the 
Department for Education (“DfE”) is looking for councils to provide deliverable 
sites.  The DfE has indicated that the site approved previously by Cabinet, 
being the grazing land at Bowlee, would require, due to the topography of the 
site, a significant amount of ground works to make it viable, which is why 
approval is sought to consider a revised site boundary.

In order to deliver a timely and cost efficient site this report suggests an 
revised scheme which would deliver greatly improved community sports 
facilities in the area, in collaboration with the school trust, while releasing a 
site for the new school that is quicker and cheaper to deliver. 

Autism Special School, Heywood
The Heads of Term and red-line site boundary have now been largely agreed 
between the council and the DfE, but details in respect of the rights of entry on 
to the site for the council, Link4Life and Utility providers are still to be agreed. 
There is therefore a recommendation to Cabinet to delegate final sign off for 
the Heads of Term to the Director of Economy and the Director of Resources, 
acting jointly, in order to enable the project to move forward in the most time 
efficient manner.

As part of the process for opening a new special school the council has 
completed an Equalities Impact Assessment on the likely effects of the new 
provision on significant groups. The assessment has found that any impacts 
are positive and are related to having a better alternative to the borough’s 
current dependence on expensive out of borough provision.

The procedure by which a school trust is awarded the contract for the new 
school is defined by the DfE process. Details of the process are given below 
and Cabinet is being asked to delegate responsibility for Rochdale BC’s 
contribution to the process to the Director of Children’s Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4.
4.1

Edgar Wood Academy, Middleton
Cabinet, on the 19th December 2017, approved the release of land within the 
Bowlee site in Middleton for a proposed lease to Altus Education Partnership 

Page 12



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

(Rochdale Sixth Form College) for the site of a new secondary school. 

On 13th March 2018 Cabinet was advised that, since the Cabinet decision in 
December 2017, further consultation had been undertaken with local residents 
which led to an alternative site (“the Alternative Site”) being identified and 
proposed as the site for the new secondary school. As a result, Cabinet 
resolved “That the alternative site identified through the public consultation 
process on land bordering Whittle Brook down to Martindale Crescent be 
identified as the preferred site for a free school”.

The Alternative Site approved by Cabinet in March 2018 is currently used as 
grazing land and has no public access across it.

On the 14th June 2019 the DfE announced the success of the Altus school 
bid. The new school is being delivered by the DfE and timescales for the build 
and subsequent school opening date will not be set until the due diligence and 
planning application process has concluded. 

The DfE have indicated they will engage with local stakeholders and residents, 
and consult at the pre-application stage in addition to the statutory 
consultation at the application phase.

However, following initial surveys on the Alternative Site by the DfE, they have 
suggested that due to the topography of the Alternative Site there would be 
significant challenges in being able to deliver the whole school (i.e. the “built 
area” and the sports playing fields) on the Alternative Site. Please note that 
the “built area” means the school building, car parks and hard surface play 
areas (such as tennis and netball courts).

 In light of the topographical challenges the DfE has given notice to the 
Council that central government funds would not meet the cost of “cut and fill” 
in order to flatten the site and successfully deliver the required school sports 
fields. 

It is therefore recommended that Cabinet approve the further revision of the 
site boundary to that shown edged red on the plan at appendix 1. It is intended 
that the school “built area” would be delivered within part of the Alternative 
Site which is currently used for grazing, and previously given Cabinet approval 
on 13th March 2018, whilst the school “green field” sports would be delivered 
on a section of the current Bowlee playing field (approximately 2.6 Hectares of 
the whole 6 Hectares playing field). 

The revised site would be disposed, by way of a 125 year lease, to Altus and 
the lease will include provision to protect the school playing field land from 
being built on at any time in the future. We would also seek to ensure that 
Altus allowed the use of the school playing fields for weekend and evening 
community sports by community groups.  Access to and use by the public of 
the remaining 3.4 Hectares of existing playing field land would not change.

The advantages of this scheme would be:
 The new school would be able to deliver a full sports curriculum within 

Page 13



4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

its own grounds. It should be noted that some new schools are 
currently being delivered without green field sports space provision.

 In addition to this a full size 3G / Astro-turf pitch would be provided as 
within the school green field sports area. 

 Use of the school sports fields, 3G pitch and school sports hall facilities, 
by Community Groups, outside the normal school working hours, would 
need to be negotiated and agreed directly between the Community 
Group and Altus. Altus has stated that they are committed to providing 
the local community with any facilities they can and the negotiated 
Heads of Term for the Lease to Altus should reflect this commitment by 
them.

 The model currently used at Kingsway Park High School, which is also 
a Township sports hub site for the community, is seen as a successful 
model delivering high quality sports facilities to both school and 
community, while bringing in revenue to fund ongoing maintenance and 
repair. In the last year Kingsway Park High School sports hub has 
hosted vollyball and netball clubs, badminton and roller skating, and 
summer holiday kids clubs. Kingsway Park High School also host 
various football clubs, rugby clubs and 5-a-side clubs on their 3G/ Astro 
turf pitch.

The football pitches that would be lost from the existing playing field land, due 
to it being demised in the lease to Altus for the school use, will be re-provided 
on the playing field land due south of the Bowlee pavilion building, shown on 
the plan at appendix 1, which is currently only maintained in case of over-use 
of other pitches.

Autism Special School, Heywood
In October 2018 the council submitted an expression of interest to the 
government’s Wave 2 Special and AP school bidding round. In early 2019 
Rochdale BC was given notification of the success of its bid to open a new 
Special school for children with autism and communications needs. 

On the 28th May 2019 Cabinet gave approval for the disposal, by way of a 
lease, of a parcel of land at Heywood Sports Village for the purpose of a new 
special school. Internal council due diligence checks have now been 
completed and the proposed boundary of the school is shown edged red on 
the plan at appendix 2. The recommendation is that Cabinet approve this 
parcel of land for the site of the Autism Special School.

The site will be disposed of by way of a lease. The lease is based on the DfE 
Model Free School lease of 125 years at a peppercorn rent, which is in line 
with other academy school leases in the borough. Agreement between 
Rochdale BC and the DfE on the Heads of Terms is almost complete the only 
outstanding issues relate to rights of entry onto the site by Link4Life, Utility 
Companies and the Council.  It is therefore recommended that Cabinet 
approves final sign off for the Heads of Term to both the Director of Economy 
and the Director of Resources acting jointly.

Page 14



4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

There has been an increase in children in Rochdale with special educational 
needs; with 3.2% of the school population having a Statement in 2008, and 
3.6% having an EHCP in 2019. Because of the rising cohorts in the general 
school population, this translates to an additional 220 pupils with the highest 
level of need (DfE statistics: Special educational needs in England Jan 2019). 
Between 2015 and 2017 the borough expanded its SEN maintained provision 
with building extensions at three of its special schools creating an additional 
92 places. 

From 2017/8 to 2019/20 there was a rise of 52% in the number of children 
accessing special needs provision out of borough in either in Non-Maintained 
or Independent settings. Independent and non-maintained provisions are 
considerably more expensive than maintained settings and the total costs 
have risen by 74% between 2017/18 and 2019/20.

Of the children with EHCP’s in Rochdale only 44% are in special schools, 
compared to a Greater Manchester average of 48% and a Tameside average 
of 58% (Gov.uk SFR 2019). As part of its due diligence, and as required by 
the funding for the new special school, Rochdale BC has completed an 
Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA), see appendix 3. The statistics above 
show that special needs places in Rochdale have not kept up with the rise in 
numbers of children and the EIA shows the new school will have a positive 
impact on Rochdale families and improve outcomes for some of our most 
challenged children.

Following the awarding of the bid to Rochdale BC, for the new special school, 
the council ran an engagement event and invited specialist academy trusts to 
bid to the DfE to run the new school. Rochdale BC has been informed it has 
had several bids. 

The bids will now be evaluated in accordance with the assessment criteria 
provided by the DfE. A two-stage process will be followed to determine the 
preferred provider for the new special free school, comprising of an evaluation 
of the written application, followed by an interview for shortlisted proposers. 
The DfE and the local authority will determine a preferred provider, after which 
a submission will be made to the Regional Schools Commissioner (RSC), 
acting on behalf of the Secretary of State for Education. The RSC will consider 
the submission and, will then make a recommendation to the Secretary of 
State for Education who will make the final decision on the provider.

Alternatives Considered

Edgar Wood Academy: To continue in accordance with the approval 
previously given on 13 March 2018 by Cabinet, following local consultation, 
which approved the Alternative Site at Bowlee as their preferred school site, 
would possibly require additional pre-build work to flatten the site and could 
significantly impact on the delivery date of the school. Such delay could also 
have an adverse effect on the ability of the council to deliver sufficient 
secondary school places. Cost for the additional works would need to be met 
by the council. The DfE might alternatively choose to deliver a secondary 

Page 15



4.21

school without a green field sports facility as they have done in other 
boroughs.

Autism Special School, Heywood: Alternatives to moving forward with at the 
new Autism school on the site at Heywood Sports village were not considered 
at this time.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The Department for Education have indicated that costs for legal works 
associated with Heywood Special School can be paid for by central 
government and these monies will be requested. To facilitate the timely 
delivery of the school at this stage, these costs are being forward funded by 
the Schools Service. These costs will not exceed £30,000.

Site surveys and building costs for the new schools will be met directly from 
central government.

Risk and Policy Implications

Both the Autism Special school and the Edgar Wood Academy, Middleton 
need to be delivered in a timely manner. The council is in continuing 
negotiations about proposed opening dates with the DfE and is pushing for 
the soonest possible opening. Current secondary school capacity in the 
borough has been being expanded now for 5 years and cannot be expanded 
further. 

Extra mainstream capacity is being negotiated as temporary increases in 
borough school intakes for the 2020/21 academic year with the 
understanding that this is not a solution that is sustainable. A net shortage of 
between 83 and 162 places in year 7 is currently predicated across the 
borough for 2021/22, with shortages in the Pennines Township of up to 117 
places and in the Middleton Township of up to 143 places. 

Rising costs associated with special needs provision out of borough at non-
maintained and independent settings is unsustainable with current funding. 
Sustainable delivery of special education to all children in Rochdale with 
EHCP’s is dependent on swift delivery of the new Autism Special School.

A full legal due diligence exercise must be undertaken before a final decision 
can be made on whether the revised Edgar Wood site is viable. As part of 
this exercise particular focus will need to be given to the access 
requirements; any rights of way that may cross the revised site; the 
termination provisions in the grazing licence(s); and the playing field 
provision. 

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Consultation

7. Consultation for both the new school sites will be carried out by the 
Department for Education as part of the pre-application process in addition to 
that required by the statutory planning process.

Page 16



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies, , 
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17



1

Equality Impact Assessment 
Report

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns

 
Date 07/10/2019

Sign-off path for EIA (please add/delete as applicable) Equalities Team
Title of Project, business area, policy/strategy New Autism Special School

Author Fay Davies

Job title, division and department Pupil Place Manager

Contact email and telephone Fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk
Ext: 5846

Strategic Director Sponsor Gail Hopper

P
age 18

mailto:Fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk


2

Rochdale BC
Full Equality Impact 
Assessment Report

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns.

1.0 Introduction
1.1 Business activity aims and 
intentions
In brief explain the aims of your 
proposal/project/service, why is it 
needed? Who is it aimed at? What is the 
intended outcome? What are the links 
to the political vision, and outcomes?

In February 2018 Rochdale Council published its SEND Strategy on its Local Offer 
webpage. Within the SEND strategy one of the key priorities is to improve outcomes for 
children with Autism and Speech, Language and Communications Needs (SLCN). The 
Council also published a detailed Autism Strategy to provide a new framework to 
facilitate the improvement process. Both the 2016 SEND inspection and the local 
authority data show that Autism is the most significant SEND issue within Rochdale.

In 2016 the Council submitted a combined bid for a new special school with Bury and 
Oldham Councils which was unsuccessful. As part of this process, and following the 2016 
SEND inspection, the Autism Development Group commissioned Barnados to carry out a 
consultation process to improve strategies and outcomes for autistic children in 
Rochdale. In August 2018 the Council submitted an EOI to the Wave 2 AP/SEN school 
process. In April 2019 the Council was informed that this application was successful. 

Since 2016 Rochdale has prudently invested Basic Need funding to increase provision in 
its Special schools with 16 additional places already provided in each of its special 
Primaries and an additional 32 places in its Special Secondary and FE School, all while 
managing to maintain a below average Basic Need cost per place. The authority has been 
identified as one of the best performing authorities in the cost per pupil place provided in 
the capital spend Scorecard. All current places at special schools are being fully utilized. 

The authority has recently opened a Primary autism Resourced Provision but has no 
secondary specialist provision for autism. Rochdale places only 44% of its EHCP pupils in 

P
age 19



3

special schools, which is well below the national average of 49%, Greater Manchester 
LA’s average of 48% or Tameside, which has 58% of its EHCP children in special schools 
(Gov SFR 2019). ASD provision is a key issue in Rochdale due to it having increasing 
numbers of SEND pupils with Autism. The SFR 2019 data show that Rochdale has the 
highest percentage of ASD pupils in mainstream settings with 16.5% of its SEN with ASD 
in Primary schools and 19.9% in Secondary schools, compared to an England average of 
7.9%  and 10.3% respectively. Currently autism capacity in Rochdale is insufficient to 
meet needs, which has led to a growing number of pupils attending out of borough (OOB) 
non-maintained special schools (NMSS) and independent providers. 

The numbers of ASD diagnoses have risen almost 3 fold in Rochdale from 200 in 2014 to 
above 500 in 2018 in Primary year groups. On average there are 13 more pupils with ASD 
as their Primary need (including both EHCP and SEN Support) in each primary year group 
than in each Secondary year group (Gov SFR 2018). From this we would expect to see up 
to 65 additional secondary places needed within the next 3-4 years. Currently over 6% of 
the whole High Needs budget is spent on OOB NMSS, independent and OOB Special FE 
settings for autistic children, and 73% of this is spent at secondary and FE ages. A new 
secondary ASD / SLCN special school is needed in order to meet the current cohort of 
EHCP primary aged pupils as they start their secondary years. Continued dependance of 
very costly OOB NMSS and independent providers is financially unsustainable.

This EIA relates to the proposed provision of a 75 place secondary and sixth form (age 11 
to 19 years) special Autism and Speech Language and Communications school. It would 
have 48 places at key stage 3 and 4, and 27 places for sixth form 16-19 year olds, 
(approximately 9 places per year group). There is an expectation that the school may 
need to be enlarged to meet the predicted need stated above. 

Funding for the new school will be provided by the Department for Education (DfE) and 
the council is expected to lease land to the academy school trust at a peppercorn rent in 
line with the standard DfE academy template. 

P
age 20



4

2.0 Analysing your equalities evidence
2.1 Evidence 
Any proposed strategy must be informed by carrying out an assessment of the likely impact that it may have.  In this section please 
include both data and analysis which shows that you understand how this decision is likely to affect residents that fall under the 
protected characteristics enshrined in law and the local characteristics which we consider to be important in Rochdale (language, 
health and socio-economic factors).  

Protected characteristics  and local 
equality characteristics

Impact analysis
For each characteristic please indicate the type of impact (i.e. positive, negative, 
positive and negative, none, or unknown), and:
Please explain how you justify your claims around impacts.
Please include any data and evidence that you have collected including from surveys, 
performance data or complaints to support your proposed changes.
Please indicate sources of data and the date it relates to/was produced 

Race Positive
The new special free school will impact positively on all children with Autism, Speech, 
Language and Communication needs, their parents and carers in line with the proportion 
of their ethnic group in the population as a whole. The creation of a specialst secondary 
and tertiary school in the borough will allow children to go to school close to their 
communities and receive community support that is lost if travelling daily OOB for 
specialst provision.

Evidence: Analysis of PLASC data identified that socio-economic disadvantage (poverty) 
and gender have stronger associations than ethnicity with overall prevalence of SEN and
of certain categories of SEN. However it was suggested that an under-representation of 
all Asian groups and Chinese pupils for both SpLD and ASD might suggest that there are 
sometimes problems in distinguishing learning difficulties from issues associated with 
English as an Additional Language (Education and Skills Research Report RR757
).

Gender Positive 

P
age 21



5

The Education & Learning Strategy focusses on continuing to ensure we champion 
educational excellence for all learners who are encouraged to achieve outstanding 
outcomes. This means creating the necessary conditions and environment for success and 
celebrating the achievement of children and young people in education and that of their 
setting or schools. It means a collective commitment to setting or school improvement 
that challenges and tackles all forms of underperformance. It means providing support, 
challenge and early intervention to ensure that schools retain their autonomy.
To deliver its champion roles with all schools, Rochdale LA will: 

–  hold all schools and providers to account for how well they serve all learners, 
particularly the most vulnerable, through access, inclusion and pupil progress

–  retain an overview of performance of all learners and ensure a dialogue with 
providers where there are concerns

Narrowing the gap in performance between groups of pupils continues to be a focus of LA 
and schools.

Overall, the commissioning of this Special free school will impact equally upon all the 
children with Autism, Speech, Language and Communication needs, although national 
trends indicate that more than two-thirds of children with SEND are male.

Evidence: Rates of autism are thought to be up to five times higher in males than females 
(autism.org.uk statistics) and girls with high-functioning ASD tend to be clinically 
identified later than boys (Giarelli et al. 2010) which means, when and if, there is a 
shortage of in borough specialist autism places, girls could possibly be at a disadvantage 
of obtaining a place.

Gender re-assignment Unknown / positive
There is no specific focus in the strategy on this equality characteristic. We as yet do not 
have any information on pupils or adult learners undergoing gender re assignment nor 
the impact that this might have on educational attainment. However, each school is 

P
age 22



6

encouraged to have an equalities policy where this characteristic is addressed. Where 
schools do have pupils undergoing gender re assignment they will be dealt with 
sensitively and health needs addressed to ensure there is no discriminatory practices.

Disability Positive 
1. A champion of vulnerable children and young people. 

This means ensuring that pupils can access and be fully included in school and settings of 
their choice. Our role is to maintain a strategic overview of admissions, inclusion, special 
education needs and the educational progress of all children and young people especially 
the most vulnerable, e.g. looked after children, whatever state-funded school or setting 
they attend. In discharging this responsibility we expect all educational providers to 
ensure access to high quality educational provision and support as needed for the most 
vulnerable.

As part of the council’s SEND review and the wider development in creating an inclusive 
environment better able to meet the needs of vulnerable children is the improvement of 
the infrastructure when expanding or creating new additional resource provision for SEN 
pupils.

The overall impact is therefore positive as the commissioning of this special free school 
will enable this. The new premises will be DDA compliant and will cater for the full range 
of conditions with an improved disability access, facilities and specially resourced areas 
that will provide the appropriate levels support needed.

Evidence: Rochdale places only 44% of its EHCP pupils in special schools, which is well 
below the national average of 49%, Greater Manchester LA’s average of 52% or the 
neighbouring LA, Tameside, which has 58% of its EHCP children in specialist provision 
(Gov SFR). Autism provision is a key issue in Rochdale due to it having increasing numbers 
of SEND pupils with Autism. The Gov SFR 2018 data show that Rochdale has one of the 

P
age 23



7

the highest percentage of ASD pupils in mainstream settings with 18.8% of its SEN with 
ASD in Primary schools and 19.5% in Secondary schools, compared to an England average 
of 7.3%  and 9.7% respectively.

Age Positive 
The commissioning of this special free school is part of the programme arising out of the 
SEND strategy review and Autism Strategy which seeks to ensure that all children have 
their special educational needs met as appropriately as possible irrespective of their age. 
The special free school would impact positively on all children identified with Autism and 
Speech, Language and Communications needs.

Evidence: The numbers of ASD diagnoses have risen almost 3 fold in Rochdale from 200 in 
2014 to above 500 in 2018 in Primary year groups. On average there are 13 more pupils 
with ASD as their Primary need (including both EHCP and SEN Support) in each primary 
year group than in each Secondary year group (Gov SFR 2018). From this we would expect 
to see up to 65 additional secondary places needed within the next 3-4 years. The 
number of children travelling out of borough to NMSS and independent settings because 
of a lack of specialist Autism provision in borough has risen by 41% from 2014 to 2018.

Sexual orientation Neutral
All schools are required to have equalities policies and address issues of sexual 
orientation openly and positively. Sex and relationships education address sexual 
orientation as a part of sex education generally.

The SEN strategy review which has identified as a priority, the need to commission a 
provision that will meet the demand for pupils with Autism, Speech, Langauage and 
Communication needs. It also seeks to ensure that the special educational needs of all 
pupils will be met irrespective of their sexual orientation.

Religion and belief Neutral 

P
age 24



8

All schools have equalities policies and promote equality, tolerance and understanding of 
all faiths and none. All schools follow the local SACRE guidance on curriculum content re 
religious education.

Pregnancy and maternity Neutral
Many adult learners are women returning to learning following child birth / child rearing 
and are an important group to get back to work. All young teenage mums in Rochdale are 
encouraged to continue with learning.

Marriage and civil partnership No specific impact to be explained

Socio-economic factors Positive
The overall impact is positive for children who are from low income or financially 
excluded backgrounds. Their rate of learning will improve as focus shifts to prevention 
and early intervention as detailed in the SEND Strategy and by the commissioning of this 
specialist provision.

Evidence: A report published by Joseph Rowntree Foundation showed that poverty is 
both a cause and an effect of SEND and makes a series of recommendations, including 
the need to prioritise SEND by Policy-makers, school and early years leaders. (Joseph 
Rowntree Foundation, Special educational needs and their links to poverty, 2016).
4 in 10 children in Rochdale live in poverty (ttp://www.endchildpoverty.org.uk/poverty-
in-your-area-2019/) and the prevalence of SEND is highest in those areas with the highest 
levels of deprivation when compared with the more affluent areas (JRF report, 2016).

Language Positive
The creation of a new school to support Autism and Speech, Language and 
Communications needs in Rochdale will support pupils and enable children to attend a 
specialist school in the borough and close to their support networks. Rochdale has now 
for more than 4 years had increased numbers of children applying for school places from 

P
age 25



9

outside the UK. Many of these children arrive speaking many different languages and 
depend on close family members for emotional support. For these children who are 
subsequently diagnosed as having a SEND need, attending school within the borough and 
maintaining close networks as they transition from secondary to teriary phases and then 
to adulthood will benefit them greatly.

Health Positive 
The Education & Learning Strategy in provides a shared ambition for all learners of all 
ages. It champions educational excellence and promotes lifelong learning. This impacts on 
the understanding of the needs to develop and maintain good health and on the decision 
making of an informed/educated  population relating to health and healthy living. 
Educational attainment leads to the acquiring of good professional and life skills and 
therefore the ability to be more employable and financially secure impactoing on 
wellbeing generally. All Rochdale schools are encouraged to become ‘ Healthy Schools’. 

2.2 Gaps in evidence base
What gaps in information have you 
identified from your analysis? In your 
response please identify areas where 
more information is required and how 
you intend to fill in the gaps. If you are 
unable to fill in the gaps please state 
this clearly with justification.

N/a

3.0 Consultation, Involvement and Coproduction
3.1 Coproduction, involvement and 
consultation 
Who are your key stakeholders and how 
have you consulted, coproduced or 
involved them? What difference did this 

 The SEND Strategy was created in consultation with relevant stakeholder groups in 
Rochdale and the subsequent Autism Strategy highlighted the significant need within 
Rochdale of this large percentage of SEN children. In particular the autism strategy 
highlighted the need for additional specialist autism provision in the borough. As part of 
the Wave 1 Special and AP (unsuccessful) school bid a consultation exercise was 

P
age 26



10

make? commissioned and run by Bernados asking for input to improve the autism provision in 
the borough from the Rochdale Parent / Carer stakeholder group. Elements of these 
views were picked up and highlighted in the Autism Strategy document. 

The development and reporting of the SEND strategy highlighted the rising costs of OOB 
NMSS and independent provision particularly for secondary and tertiary autism provision.

3.2 Gaps in coproduction, consultation 
and involvement
What gaps in consultation and 
involvement and coproduction have you 
identified (set out any gaps as they 
relate to specific equality groups)?  
Please describe where more 
consultation, involvement and/or 
coproduction is required and set out 
how you intend to undertake it. If you 
do not intend to undertake it, please set 
out your justification. 

N/A

4.0 Conclusions, justification and action
4.1 Conclusions and justification 
What are the main conclusions of this 
EIA? What, if any, disproportionate 
negative or positive equality impacts did 
you identify.

The main conclusion of this EIA is to support the provision of a new Autism and Speech, 
Language and Comminications school in the borough in order to deliver on the needs 
identified in the SEND and Autism strategy documents.

4.2 Equality Action plan
Please list  the equality issue/s identified through the evidence and the mitigating action to be taken.  Please also detail the date 
when the action will be taken and the name and job title of the responsible officer.   

P
age 27



11

Equality Issue Mitigating actions
Example: 
That the equality analysis may not have 
accurately covered all the equality 
impacts; and the mitigations may not 
act to reduce disproportionate impact

Example: 
Review the EIA and assess whether the mitigating actions were sufficient.

The Strategy will be reviewed and updated annually

No further activity required N/a

5.0 Publishing your results
 
EIA publishing date 29th October 2019
EIA review date 29th October 2021
Assessment sign off (name/job title): Abdulaleem Muhammad – Equality and Community Cohesion Officer

P
age 28



Page 29



Heywood Sports Centre, West Starkey St Rochdale
P. Warden

17/09/2019 09:40:Date:

Author:Red LIne Plan

Scale: 1:1250

Department for Education

© Crown copyright and database right. All rights reserved (100038433) 2019

Building Outlines

Site Outlines

P
age 30



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 29th October 2019
Portfolio Councillor Carol Wardle

Portfolio Holder for Planning, 
Development & Housing

Report Author David Allen

Public/Private Document Public

Adoption of Revised Statement of Community Involvement

Executive Summary

1.1 The draft revised SCI was published for public consultation for a period of 
eight weeks in late 2018 to allow for stakeholders and members of the public 
to comment and provide input. This report considers all of the consultation 
responses and proposed changes, which are set out in the Schedule of 
Comments (Appendix 1); the document is recommended for adoption. 

Recommendations

2.1

2.2

To consider and note the representations and officers’ responses to 
representations received following consultation and the proposed changes to 
the SCI.

To approve the adoption of the revised SCI (October 2019). 

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local 
planning authorities to produce a Statement of Community Involvement, which 
should explain how they will engage local communities and other interested 
parties in producing their Local Plan and determining planning applications.

In addition, the approval of the revised SCI will enable savings proposals for 
the Economy directorate through increased efficiencies in notification and 
publicity undertakings in the Development Management service through a 
reduction in the volume of letter notifications issued in relation to planning 
applications. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The current Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was adopted in 
November 2015. It is important, in the interests of clarity for stakeholders 
and to avoid the potential for legal challenge, that the SCI is up to date and 
reflects present national planning legislation and the Council’s own current 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

procedures, including recent alterations to the consultation and 
communication procedures in relation to Development Management 
functions. The Council’s Code of Practice for Publicity of Planning 
Applications will also be reviewed separately. 

The SCI has been updated to reflect:
 Legal changes: The Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015; The Development 
Management Procedure Order 2015; and The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.

 Policy changes: Corporate Plan 2016-2019; and the Adopted 
Rochdale Core Strategy October 2016.

 Greater flexibility in tailoring consultation for Development 
Management processes so that it is appropriate, proportionate and 
avoids unnecessary resources being used which may not be cost 
effective, in accordance with previously approved savings proposals.

Those sections of the document which have been revised are:
1) Introduction – updated to reflect the current iteration of the 

document.
3) National and Local Context – revised to reflect replacement 

legislation and the adoption of updated local policy.
4) Community Involvement in Planning Policy – updated to reflect 

the adoption of the Rochdale Core Strategy, changes to specific 
consultation bodies and updates to Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (GMSF) references. 

5) Community Involvement in Planning Applications – updated to 
reflect additional consultation measures at pre-application stage, 
current statutory requirements for press and site notices, length of 
consultation periods, adoption of the current Development 
Management delegation scheme within the Council’s Constitution, 
and committee notification procedures. 

6) How we will incorporate your say – updated in accordance with the 
revisions to section 5.

7) Contact us – updated to reflect current contact procedures and the 
availability of additional customer information points within the 
Borough.

The draft revised SCI was taken to Informal Cabinet on 4th September 2018 
where it was determined that the Portfolio Holder was to exercise delegated 
powers to approve the draft for consultation.

The draft revised SCI was consulted on for a period of eight weeks (27th 
September to 22nd November 2018). The draft was published on the 
Council’s website and consultation portal, copies were made available in 
each of the four Township libraries and stakeholders on the Council’s 
planning consultation database were notified by letter or email.

Three consultation responses were received, from statutory consultees. A 
summary of these consultation responses is attached to this report at 
Appendix 1. It was not considered appropriate to make further changes to 

Page 32



4.7

the SCI in light of the consultation responses received. A revision is 
proposed to reflect extended consultation periods for planning applications, 
implemented by the Development Management Service in accordance with 
revised legislation. The document is recommended for adoption.  

Alternatives considered

It is a legal requirement for the Council to produce a SCI and to carry out 
consultation on planning policies and planning applications in line with the 
SCI. The only alternative possible would be to not adopt the revised SCI; 
failure to adopt an up to date SCI could leave the Council open to legal 
challenge.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1. The revised Development Management notification procedures are intended 
to meet previously agreed savings proposals. The revised document does not 
commit the Council to any additional expenditure on other consultation than 
that which is contained within the existing SCI. There are no specific financial 
implications involved in producing the revised Statement of Community 
Involvement, which has been prepared in house within existing budgets. 

Risk and Policy Implications

The Statement of Community Involvement and its production is governed by 
the requirements of Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended), which ensure appropriate levels of 
consultation. Failure to produce an up to date SCI which reflects current 
Council practices could leave the Council open to legal challenge on 
decisions taken on planning applications.

There are no personnel implications arising from the production and adoption 
of the revised SCI.

The key purpose of the SCI is to promote opportunities for involving the 
community and stakeholders in decision making processes and increasing the 
ways in which information is made available. 

Equality impacts have been taken into account in the Statement of 
Community Involvement. The SCI has a positive impact as it seeks to 
promote an inclusive approach to consultation on planning policy documents 
and planning applications.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Consultation

7.1

7.2

The draft revised SCI was published for public consultation for a period of 
eight weeks to allow for stakeholders and members of the public to comment 
and provide input before the statement was finalised for approval by Cabinet.

During this time the draft SCI was published on the Council’s website, and 

Page 33



copies of the document were available in Number One Riverside and the 
libraries in each four Townships. Stakeholders on the Council’s planning 
consultation database were notified by letter or email. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) – October 
2019

Members’ Lounge

For Further Information Contact: Paul Moore
paul.moore@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 34

mailto:paul.moore@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Revised Statement of Community Involvement – Schedule of Comments and Proposed Changes 

Name/Organisation Comments Summary Response Proposed changes to SCI
Environment Agency Confirm no detailed comments to make on the draft 

revised Statement of Community Involvement. 
Note that the EA now offers developers detailed 
planning advice through their voluntary charging 
service with further advice available on the EA 
website.

Comments noted. No change.

Natural England Note that the statutory purpose of NE is to ensure 
that the natural environment is conserved, 
enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to 
sustainable development. 
NE is supportive of the principle of meaningful and 
early engagement of the general community, 
community organisations and statutory bodies in 
local planning matters.
Regret that NE is unable to comment, in detail, on 
individual Statements of Community Involvement but 
note that information on their services is available on 
the NE website.
NE now asks that all planning consultations are sent 
electronically to the central hub for our planning and 
development advisory service.

Comments noted. No change.

Network Rail Note the status of NR as a statutory consultee for 
certain planning applications and the requirement to 
consult the Office of Rail and Road (ORR).

Comments noted. The 
Office of Rail and Road are 
included within the 
Council’s consultation 
database.

No change.

P
age 35



Name/Organisation Comments Summary Response Proposed changes to SCI
Rochdale Council The Town and Country Planning (Local Authority 

Consultations etc.) (England) Order 2018 came into 
force on 1st June 2018 and requires that periods of 
public consultation be extended to compensate for 
public holidays which occur during the allotted time 
period. The regulations retain the discretion for Local 
Planning Authorities to extend consultation periods 
where appropriate. Accordingly, all consultation 
periods (arising from the issuance of neighbour 
notification letters, site notices and press notices) for 
planning applications, Listed Building Consent 
applications, permission in principle applications and 
prior approval applications have been extended from 
21 days to 24 days.

The SCI is to be updated to 
reflect the requirements of 
the legislation.

References to 21 day 
consultation periods in 
paragraphs 5.18, 5.21, 5.22 
and 5.23 are replaced with 
reference to 24 day 
consultation periods.

P
age 36



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting Meeting Date  29th 
October 2019

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Vicky Clarke - Libraries 
and Customer Services 
Manager 

Public/Private Document Public 

Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the Council’s 
revised Library Service Strategy 2019 – 2022  

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members approve the strategy attached as an 
Appendix to this report

Reason for Recommendation

3. The current strategy covers the period 2016 - 2019. A new strategy is required 
to outline the service’s future plans and how we will work with our partners and 
community to improve our services.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 The draft plan sets out the Library Service’s priorities for the next three years. 
It is underpinned by the priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan of 
Prosperous People and Places and the Council values of Passion, Pioneering, 
Open and Proud. 

4.2 The library service strategy has links with service specific documents and 
agencies such as: 

 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority Strategy
 The Reading Agency
 Libraries Connected
 Public Libraries and Museums Act 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 The Arts Council 

4.3 The strategy outcomes are based on the Libraries Connected national 
Universal offers. They are designed to demonstrate the power of libraries to 
enrich the lives of individuals and their communities. They include:

 Health
 Culture
 Digital
 Reading
 Information
 Learning

4.4 The Rochdale Library Service’s vision is
 

Bringing people together for learning, culture and enjoyment

4.5 Our new Strategy has been developed as a result of a public consultation 
carried out in 2018. This showed that 96% of respondents were satisfied with the 
services delivered by the library service and would like to see an increased 
variety of activities within libraries. 

      4.6 The strategy has outcomes that benefit the residents of the borough, improve 
the delivery of services and change how those services are delivered. These 
include:

 Health – We will improve the health and wellbeing of local communities by             
providing services that include self-help. Libraries will link in with the 
Council’s Ageing Well agenda and support the Dementia Friendly scheme

 Children – We will inspire children and young people to read for pleasure 
and provide materials and activities to support their education and 
wellbeing 

 Digital – We will equip library services with the resources and skills to 
deliver digital activities

 Culture – We will provide quality and diverse cultural events
 Reading -  We will provide activities and events to encourage residents to 

read         for pleasure and set up groups for all tastes and genres
 Information – We will support library users to access quality information 

and services online
 Learning – We will ensure our libraries are part of a person’s learning 

journey to improve confidence and support education

      4.7 Our ways of working are reflected in the document and show how we will     
change practices to help to manage demand on public services and save money 
and resources. We will work co-operatively with our residents, community groups 
and third sector to help design and deliver services. There will be an internal 
action plan with details of how the priorities will be achieved.

     

Page 38



Costs and Budget Summary

5. The Library Service Strategy links to the Financial Strategy and will be 
delivered within existing budgets. The Service is currently bidding for additional 
capital funding to further develop and modernise the library offer.  

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Library Service strategy will outline the services to be delivered via an 
action plan during the lifetime of the strategy. The new Strategy is aligned with 
the new Corporate Plan 2019-22. The Library Service strategy will be reviewed 
annually to ensure that the priorities are aligned appropriately.

Consultation

7.  Consultation took place with elected members and residents in the 
development of the new Libraries Service Strategy 2019-22. This included 
responses in a questionnaire by 703 residents.

Uirement 
for public 
consultation

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None 

For Further Information Contact: Vicky Clarke
Vicky.clarke@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924877

Page 39

mailto:Vicky.clarke@rochdale.gov.uk


Bringing people together for 
learning, culture and enjoyment

Rochdale Borough 
Council Library 
Service Strategy 
2019 - 2022

Page 40



2 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Councillor Janet Emsley
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Councillor Allen Brett
Leader of Rochdale Borough Council

They sit at the heart of our communities 
and provide spaces for enjoyment and 
learning for everyone. Our borough 
boasts 16 branches, ranging from our 
large modern central library in an award 
winning building to smaller traditional ones 
sitting in the heart of our neighbourhoods. 
Our libraries offer residents access to 
resources, services and events that support 

personal development, recreation and 
leisure. We will continue to invest in our 
libraries service, looking at new ways to 
inspire people and raise aspiration. We will 
look to our communities to support us in 
maintaining the library service, by asking 
them to use the facilities, telling us what 
they want and need from a local library, as 
well as helping to run them.

We are very proud to introduce Rochdale’s 
Library Strategy. Libraries have typically 
been viewed as buildings with books, but 
they are so much more.

Page 41



3 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

There are many reasons why 
people visit our libraries

8%

82%

37%

5%

32%

7%

26%

Visit customer services

Borrow books

Attend a group

Attend health or 
advice appointment

Use a computer

Attend computer classes

Attend with children

Page 42



4 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

We have enjoyed 
great success

96% of people are satisfied with 
our library services

16,025 active 
borrowers and 

206 housebound 
borrowers

Successful partnership 
working with GM police, 
NHS, Link4life, GMCA, 

DWP and CAB

236,492 items of stock 
and the best stock 
management in the 

North West

11,677 e-books and 
e-audio books 
issued in 18/19

Annual Literature 
and Ideas Festival

Digital Festival and 
Tech Talks

Fit, feed and read 
event held each 

summer - helps alleviate 
holiday poverty for 

many families

265 PCs and tablets 
available for use by the 
public, used for 97,940 

hours in 18/19

Popular and award 
winning early years 

programme

Successfully 
supported bid for 

Dippy the Dinosaur 
on his national tour 

Digital skills sessions 
in all branches - basic 
skills, digital skills for 

jobs, coding clubs and 
Universal Credit Support

3448 volunteer hours 
provided by our 

33 active volunteers

Page 43



5 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

We face challenges and must 
make changes to our services

Financial  
With reduced funding and resources to 
deliver council services, we have to find 
new ways to do more, with less, whilst at 
the same time meeting customer needs 
and demands.

Buildings  
All of our buildings, including libraries, 
must offer accessible spaces for our 
communities to come together, meaning 
they must be in the right location, run 
by the right people and delivering the 
right services.

Services  
Our libraries must offer services that 
add value, to encourage communities 
to use them. We will listen to what 
customers tell us they want and need.

Page 44



6 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Our priorities for improving 
the library service

Creating library services for our 
people and place
Our library services will be accessible to 
all, offering spaces for people to engage in 
activities that improve their lives. We will 
support children to be school ready and 
young people and adults to be life ready, 
through education, learning, culture 
and enjoyment. 

Creating cooperative library services 
Our libraries will enable individuals and 
groups to contribute to and connect with 
their local community, whether that be 
through using our services or helping to 
deliver them.

1.  More residents using the doorstep 
facility to access books and other library 
services, in particular, specific groups 
including: older people, people with 
disabilities, carers, new mothers, hospital 
leavers, new and emerging communities

2.  More residents seeking support for 
health issues through an extended 
programme of health and welfare checks

3.  More residents attending group activities 
through an extended programme of 
positive lifestyle sessions

4.  More residents and health professionals 
aware of books on prescription and read 
well and mood boosting books

5.  More residents becoming library 
volunteers or supporting delivery of 
reading schemes

6.  All libraries to be part of the Safe Places 
national network to enable people with 
additional needs to be more active in 
their community 

Our measures of success

Our outcome: Health 

•  We will improve the health and 
wellbeing of local communities by 
providing services that include 
self-help

•  Libraries to link in with the 
Council’s ageing well agenda 
and support the Dementia 
Friendly scheme

•  All libraries to become part of the 
dementia friendly network

•  Library service to work with health 
partners to deliver the ageing well 
agenda

Prosperous people and places
Prosperity is the condition of being successful or thriving and that is what we want 
for our people and places. Prosperous people are healthy, safe, happy and able to 
participate fully in life. Prosperous places continually grow and change and they have 
strong local economies that provide opportunities and quality of life.

Page 45



7 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Our outcome: Children
We will inspire children and young people to read for 
pleasure and provide materials and activities to support 
their education and wellbeing.

Our outcome: Digital
We will equip library services with the resources and 
skills to deliver digital activities.

1.  More 14 - 25 year olds participating in 
the ‘Generation Z Programme’ as part of 
the Literature and Ideas Festival 

2.  More children accessing the Fit Feed and 
Read scheme from low income families

3.  More young people (aged 16 and under) 
becoming a library volunteer through 
schools and the Duke of Edinburgh 
Award scheme

4.  More children accessing the Bookstart 
bear and early years sessions

5.  More children and young people 
attending activities that are designed 
and targeted to meet the needs of 
specific age groups: 0 - 5, 5 - 10, 10 - 16

1.  More residents accessing digital training and 
development sessions 

2.  More residents aware of digital opportunities 
through the Digital Festival 

3.  All staff trained in digital expertise to deliver a 
wider programme of digital training

4.  Residents able to access digital devices to develop 
programming and hardware building skills 

5.  More residents accessing online reading materials 
through a variety of digital platforms

6.  Residents able to access digital musical 
instruments, audio and visual equipment to 
develop creative skills

7.  Residents able to locate reading material in their 
nearest library through location finding software 

Our measures of success

Our measures of success

Page 46



8 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Our outcome: Culture
We will provide quality and diverse cultural events

Our outcome: Reading
We will provide activities and events to encourage residents to 
read for pleasure and set up groups for all tastes and genres

1.  Deliver an annual programme of events 
focused on literature 

2.  Deliver talks and displays that support 
historical and commemorative events 

3.  Deliver an annual programme of 
activities to celebrate the customs and 
practices of different groups

4.  Deliver art exhibitions that showcase the 
work of local artists 

5.  Provide opportunities for local aspiring 
writers to have their work recognised 
and published 

6.  Enable local theatre groups to stage 
amateur dramatic performances that 
highlight important issues

1.  More children taking part in the national 
summer reading challenge 

2.  More residents joining a reading group by 
ensuring every library offers groups that 
appeal to different ages and reading taste

3.  More adults taking part in schemes that 
encourage reading for pleasure

4.  More residents accessing story telling 
sessions by ensuring every library offers 
opportunities for children and adults and 
those with additional needs

Our measures of success

Our measures of success

Page 47



9 Rochdale Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022

Our outcome: Information 
We will support library users to access quality 
information and services online

Our outcome: Learning
We will ensure our libraries are part of a person’s learning 
journey to improve confidence and support education

1.  Residents able to access quality welfare 
rights, legal and debt advice in every 
township 

2.  All staff trained in providing general 
advice and signposting to a variety of 
support services

3.  Residents able to connect with and 
learn from others that have shared 
experiences  

1.  Residents able to experience and benefit from 
national education programme events 

2.  Residents able to access activities linked to 
national education programmes to facilitate 
ongoing interest in academic subjects

3.  Offer library apprenticeship opportunities for 
young people

4.  Residents able to access activities linked to 
developing life skills 

Our measures of success

Our measures of success

Page 48



Cooperation
Residents, community groups and the third 
sector will help to design and deliver services

Inclusion
Library environments will be suitable for those 
with disabilities, conditions and other needs

Strengthening assets
Partners, agencies and others will be able to 
deliver their services out of our buildings

Integrated and local
Residents will be able to access libraries at 
times that are convenient for them

Prevention and intervention
Residents will be supported to enjoy life, cope 
with challenges and achieve their potential

Behaviour change
Residents will be encouraged to help 
themselves to improve their lives

Our ways of working 

rochdale.gov.uk
Page 49



Report to Informal Cabinet

Date of Meeting Meeting Date 29th 
October 2019

Portfolio Portfolio Holder for 
Resources

Report Author Caroline Wolfenden
Public/Private Document Public

Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022

Executive Summary

1. The Corporate Plan is a necessary tool for providing strategic 
direction. It sets out our vision for the borough and the Council’s 
contribution in achieving that vision. It enables us to tackle challenges 
and deliver improvements for the people that live, work or visit 
Rochdale, by prioritising the work that we do. It informs the allocation of 
resources so that we deliver the right services and it holds us to account 
in achieving outcomes. It informs other strategies and policies so that 
our day to day business is considered, controlled and our performance 
is effectively monitored.

Recommendation

2. That the Corporate Plan 2019-2022 be recommended to Council for approval. 

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Corporate Plan replaces the current version (2016-2019) to provide 
ongoing strategic direction over the next three years. The Council is responsible 
for approval of the Corporate Plan on recommendation by Cabinet. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The plan sets out the Council’s long term vision and priorities and identifies 
measures of success that are aligned with the strategic partnership outcomes 
identified by the Strategic Place Board (formally the Health and Wellbeing Board)

4.2 The Council vision was agreed by Leadership Team and Cabinet Members as 
part of development sessions with the Local Government Association. It is ‘To 
make our borough a great place to grow up, get on and live well’

4.3 The Council has recently reviewed its values and behaviours which have 
been incorporated into the Chief Executives foreword. These include Passion, 
Pioneering and open and Pride. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



4.4 The Council has reworked its priorities to Prosperous People and Places. 
Prosperity has always been a stand-alone priority, but it is considered that 
prosperity is actually a product of both people and places as a result of the action 
they/we take. This is explained in the Leaders foreword.

4.5 The plan utilises an outcomes based accountability methodology. This 
involves outlining what you want to achieve for the population e.g. the whole 
population or a specific demographic. It also involves identifying indicators, which 
are essentially measures that help to quantify the achievement of an outcome.

4.6 The 10 strategic partnership outcomes, fit with the theme of people (5) and 
place (5) The indicators of success are aligned with the outcomes and are the 
things that will ensure people get a good start, are protected, are resilient, are 
healthy and fulfil their potential and will ensure that the place is age friendly, 
inclusive, welcoming, provides opportunities and supports sustainable growth. 

4.7 The indicators of success will form part of the Leadership Team performance 
dashboard, to support Council Directors in strategically monitoring achievement 
of the vision and priorities over the next 3 years.  The Corporate Plan steers the 
work contained within directorate plans, with progress against actions being 
reported to Scrutiny Committees on a quarterly basis. This enables members to 
monitor operational business throughout the year, ensuring that directorates are 
contributing to meeting the corporate outcomes.

  4.8 The ways of working outlined in the plan are reflective of the need to 
  manage demand on public services and save money and are explicit about the 
  role of different stakeholders in supporting that. They also take account of 
  cooperative principles and the Greater Manchester Model for reforming public 
  services.

4.9 The plan has been informed by research, statistics and consultation to: 

 Acknowledge local challenges and issues
 Create a link with service specific strategies 
 Take account of Labour Group political aspirations 
 Monitor performance against local, regional and national targets

4.10 The plan has been informed by the following documents:

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
 Labour Party Manifesto
 Resident Survey
 Greater Manchester Strategy
 Directorate Plans
 Service Strategies e.g. Locality Plan, Children and Young People Plan
 Leadership Team Performance Dashboard

4.11 The plan has been subject to engagement from Leadership, Elected 
Members, Council Officers and Members of the Public. Feedback has been 
positive with minimal need for amendments since the first iteration. The key 

Page 51



change is an addition to the ‘our ways of working’ section which picks up on the 
climate change emergency. A corporate design has also been applied and some 
of the measures of success have been tweaked for Plain English purposes and 
to ensure that there are SMART. 

Costs and Budget Summary

  5. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a 5 year plan which sets out our 
commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally, and 
represents good value for money. The MTFS links our council vision and priorities 
with forecasted resources and budgets. The Corporate Plan contains the Council’s 
vision and priorities and is aligned with the MTFS. 

Risk and Policy Implications

 6. An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out. In the main, the impact will 
be neutral for most of the protected groups with positive impacts identified for 
age, disability, carers and pregnancy and maternity, where challenges have been 
identified and specific outcomes have been targeted to support these groups. 

Consultation

7. The following consultation has taken place:
Leadership Team - 9th July
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny - 23rd July
Citizens Panel - 6th August
Leadership Team 17th September
Cabinet - 29th October 
Full Council - 11th December 

Uirement 
for public 
consultation

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Caroline Wolfenden 
Caroline.Wolfenden@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 52



Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate: Neighbourhoods

Service: Information, Customers and Communities (Corporate Policy)

Officer completing EIA: Caroline Wolfenden

Other officers involved in completing EIA: Helen Walton

Date of Assessment: 12th September 2019

Name of policy to be assessed: Corporate Plan

Is this a new or revised policy?

New      ☐                    Revised      ☒

What is the purpose of the policy? To set the strategic direction of the Council over the next three years, in 
the form of a vision, priorities, outcomes and measures of success. It replaces the previous corporate plan 
2016-2019.

Are there any other objectives?
The corporate plan will drive the content of directorate plans, ensuring that the action/work the council will 
undertake on an annual basis, contributes to achievement of the corporate plan outcomes and measures. It 
also seeks to support the manifesto pledges outlined by the political leadership. 

Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)? 
Citizens
Residents
Communities
Businesses
Staff
Partners
Third sector
Elected members

Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☒                    No      ☐

The corporate plan seeks to steer the council in delivering services that meet the current and future needs of 
the people it serves and allocating resources to support delivery of those services. 

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?

Data that has been considered for this assessment includes:
 Census 2011

https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata/2011censusdatacatalogue

Page 53

https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata/2011censusdatacatalogue


 Rochdale Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2018
http://internet.rochdale.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessment

 Local Economy report 2018 - 2019
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-08-28-local-economy-report-2018-19-v1.pdf

Healthy live in Rochdale 2016 - 2018
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s43677/Healthy%20Lifestyles%20Strategy%2016%2018
%20FINAL.pdf

 Resident Survey 2017 
Appendix A

 Performance data 2016 - 2019
Example dashboard at Appendix B

 Council’s Equality data (borough profile and workforce data) 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2018-07-27-equality-and-diversity-data-v1.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-08-09-employment-equality-report-2018-19-v1.pdf

 Council and CCG joint E&D strategy
Currently in draft version

 2016 Health Related Behaviours survey

 Other key council strategies including:
- Children and Young Peoples Plan 2017 - 2020
- Draft Community Safety Plan 2019 - 2022
- SEND Strategy 2017 - 2019
- Locality Plan 2016 - 2021
- Housing Strategy 2017 - 2022
- Directorate Plans 2019-2020
- Organisational Development Strategy 2017 - 2020
- Age friendly plan
- Relationships Manifesto
- Draft Creative Strategy
- Clean Air outline business case

 Labour Party Manifesto 2019 - 2020
Appendix C

 Greater Manchester Strategy
 https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/media/1084/greater_manchester_summary___full_version.pdf

 Social Mobility Government report
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6422
20/Young_Muslims_SMC.pdf

The JSNA provides demographic data. 26% of the boroughs population is made up of younger people (aged 0-
19). 7% of which are aged 0-4. We have seen a 6.6% increase in this demographic since 2001. 16% is made 
up of people aged 65 and over. There has been an 18.1% increase in this demographic since 2001 and further 
increases are expected as the population ages. There were 34,892 older people in Rochdale in 2016 which is 
forecasted to rise to 41,400 by 2025. It is predicted there will be a fall in those aged 15-29 and a small rise in 
those aged 30-44. It is reported that 27.1% of children are living in low income families and suffering poverty 
and academic achievement level could be better.The 2016 Health Related Behaviours survey presents data 
about life satisfaction in school children - 5% of primary school pupils had low self-esteem scores and 61% of 
secondary school pupils reported they are, in general, ‘quite a lot’ or ‘a lot’ satisfied with their life at the 

Page 54

http://internet.rochdale.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-08-28-local-economy-report-2018-19-v1.pdf
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s43677/Healthy%20Lifestyles%20Strategy%2016%2018%20FINAL.pdf
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s43677/Healthy%20Lifestyles%20Strategy%2016%2018%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2018-07-27-equality-and-diversity-data-v1.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-08-09-employment-equality-report-2018-19-v1.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/1084/greater_manchester_summary___full_version.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/1084/greater_manchester_summary___full_version.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/642220/Young_Muslims_SMC.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/642220/Young_Muslims_SMC.pdf


moment. 20% of secondary school pupils reported they had been bullied at or near school in the last 12 
months.High percentages of our older population (ages 50-64) have no qualifications and only 60.1% are in 
employment. It is considered that over 1 million people in England aged 65 and over are persistently or 
chronically lonely. The Corporate Plan takes account of our younger and older age groups, identifying specific 
outcomes that will enable them to start and live well by tackling the issues identified. There will be opportunities 
for all age groups. The plan is focused on delivering outcomes for all residents as well as the specific 
demographics of chilldren and young people and older people.  It is considered the plan will have a positive 
effect in respect of age.

Our population is ethnically diverse. Black and Minority Ethnicity (BME) groups accounted for over 21% of the 
borough population in the 2011 Census. The BME population increased from 13.9% in 2001 to 21.4% in 2011. 
The census revealed that 166,481 people identify as White British which makes up 78.6% of the local 
population. The largest ethnic minority group is Pakistani which makes up 10.5% of the local population 
(22,265), and the second largest is Bangladeshi with 2.1% of the population (4,342). Or Origins tool which 
tracks migration levels and emerging communities shows growth in the Eastern European groups. 36.6% of 
school children are from BME communities and 32.9% of BME births were recorded in 2016. 

In the 2011 Census, over 75% of Rochdale borough residents said they have religious beliefs. Christians form 
the main religious group in the Rochdale Borough with 128,186 (60.6% of the total population) people. The next 
largest religious group is Muslim with 29,426 (13.9%) people in the Borough. The number of residents which 
stated that they had no religion is 40,014 which is 18.9% of residents in the Borough.

A report by the Social Mobility Commission states that Muslims experience the greatest economic 
disadvantages of any group in UK society. They are more likely than non-Muslims to experience 
neighbourhood deprivation, housing, educational and health disadvantage, and unemployment. In particular 
young Muslims who experience educational success do not see this translating into good labour market 
outcomes. The Corporate Plan identifies specific outcomes around cohesion, reducing inequality and giving 
children a good start and opportunities to fulfil their potential as young people. It is considered the plan will 
have a positive effect in respect of race and religion. The Council is developing a joint CCG and LA Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy which will identify specific priorities for advancing equality for all protected 
groups. 

The 2011 Census shows that the number of Rochdale residents reporting a long-term health problem or 
disability is 44,359 (21%). For residents aged 16-64 the rate was lower at 11.3% (23,981). 19.9% of children in 
need in Rochdale have a disability recorded and this compares to 12.7% nationally. Our top 3 key disabilities 
recorded are Autism/Asperger syndrome (32.2%), Mobility (31.1%) and Learning (25.2%). The Corporate Plan 
outlines outcomes for improving health across the whole of the population, to prevent long term conditions It 
also states that people with Disabilities and Special Educational Needs will be supported to know their rights 
and will receive joined up support. It is considered the plan will have a positive effect in respect of disability. 

Rochdale faces a challenge in giving children the best start which is that we have higher levels of smoking in 
mothers and lower breastfeeding prevalence. The corporate plan identifies these as measures of success in 
supporting children to be healthy and as such will work with pregnant and new mothers to address these 
issues. The Council’s relationships manifesto identifies that pregnancy can have an impact on relationships. 
The Corporate Plan acknowledges that families might needs support to stay together through early 
intervention. In that respect it can be said that the Corporate Plan will have a positive impact for the protected 
characteristic of pregnancy and maternity. 

There are more females than males in the borough; with approximately 108,057 women compared with 
103,642 males. The corporate plan identifies outcomes that will be of benefit to all residents as well as specific 
demographic groups, regardless of their sex. As such it can be considered that the impact will be fairly neutral. 
However we do recognise that sexism is deep-rooted within society, and that it often undermines women's 
significant contributions. Women are still expected to take the major responsibility for the family. Most work in 
low paid and low status jobs and they can be victims of crime in respect of domestic violence. The Equality and 
Diversity Strategy will seek to address these types of inequalities and other strategies seek to implement 
services and initiatives to mitigate. 

There are limited accurate statistics available regarding the profile of the lesbian, gay, bisexual and 
transgender (LGBT) population either in the borough or the UK as a whole. The census does not measure how 

Page 55



many residents within the borough identify as transgender, however, the Gender Identity Research and 
Education Society estimates that 1 in 4,000 of the UK population seeks support to change their gender. There 
is evidence to suggest that these groups of people consider themselves to be amongst the most marginalised 
and discriminated against groups in society and can experience significant health inequalities. There are 
outcomes within the Corporate Plan that support people at risk of harm, support people to live in harmony 
together, whatever their background, enable people to have their voce heard and be free from discrimination. It 
is considered that there will be no adverse impact in respect of sexual orientation or gender reassignment. 

The 2011 census showed almost 73,323, (44.2%) of residents as being married and 293 (0.2%) in civil 
partnerships in Rochdale borough. The council’s Relationships Manifesto highlights the importance of good 
relationships for higher levels of happiness. The Corporate Plan acknowledges that families might need support 
to stay together through early intervention, but will provide support to all residents regardless of their 
partnership status, as such it is considered that there will be no adverse impact in respect of Marriage or Civil 
Partnership

Armed Forces personnel often need additional advice and support relating to issues of education, housing, 
training and jobs. There are outcomes within the Corporate Plan that support people at risk of harm, support 
people to live in harmony together, whatever their background, enable people to have their voce heard and be 
free from discrimination. It is considered that there will be no adverse impact in respect of armed forces. 

Within the Borough of Rochdale 23,260 people identified themselves as a carer in the 2011 Census. According 
to the 2011 census there are 6,105 people within the Rochdale Borough (2.9% of the total local population) 
providing 50 or more hours of unpaid care per week. This is above regional and national comparators. The 
JSNA highlights a key theme that carers can be isolated, as such the corporate plan prioritises more carers 
receiving appropriate support and having good levels of social contact. It is considered that there will be a 
positive impact for carers. 

What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?

(Identify whether the policy has the potential to impact in a positive or negative way or not at all. For negative 
impacts use the impact table to calculate a score based on the likelihood that an impact will occur and what the 
actual impact might be then determine whether it is a High priority (H), Medium priority (M) or Low priority (L))

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score 
(1-25)

Impact 
priority
(H/M/L)

Neutral 
Impact

Age
☒ ☐ ☐

Disability
☒ ☐ ☐

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ ☒

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ ☒

Pregnancy or maternity
☒ ☐ ☐

Race 
☐ ☐ ☒

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ ☒

Sex
☐ ☐ ☒

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ ☒

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☐ ☒

Carers ☒ ☐ ☐

Page 56



3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☒

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

N/A as impacts are neutral or positive. 

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒

Lead Officer Signature: C. Wolfenden Date: 12.09.2019

Approver Signature Date:

Page 57



Prosperous 
people and places
Our Corporate Plan 2019-2022

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   1 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 58



Our vision:
Make our borough a great place 
to grow up, get on and live well

Prosperity is the condition of being successful or thriving and that is what we want 
for our people and places. Prosperous people are healthy, safe, happy and able to 
participate fully in life. Prosperous places continually grow and change and they 
have strong local economies that provide opportunities and quality of life. 

Everyone in the borough will make things better for themselves and others. We will enable individuals 
and communities to lead change in their own lives and neighbourhoods, by having conversations and 
drawing upon their experiences and expertise to design and deliver the right services. 

We will also provide specialist support to those that are struggling and in need of extra help. As a 
Cooperative Council we are committed to working with citizens and partners to make our borough a 
great place to grow up, get on and live well. 

We are ambitious for our people and place and our Passion to strive for 
excellence is what underpins our corporate plan. For many years councils 
have faced significant financial challenges, having to do more with less. 

While we have demonstrated resilience and have continued to deliver services and make 
improvements to the local area, we cannot ignore the ongoing financial difficulties that we 
face and the inequalities experienced by some people that live in the borough. We must                 
adopt a pioneering and open approach to meet the different needs and aspirations of our     
diverse communities. 

This involves responding positively to change, being realistic about what is practical and 
affordable, and working together to deliver outcomes. We are committed to our role as 
ambassadors for the borough and we want everyone to join us in making the borough of    
Rochdale a place to be proud of.

Councillor Allen Brett
Leader of Rochdale Borough Council

Steve Rumbelow
Chief Executive of Rochdale Borough Council

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   2 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 59



Our outcomes:

People get a  
good start

People are 
protected

People are 
resilient

People are
healthy

People fulfil     
their potential

Place is age 
friendly

Place is      
inclusive

Place is 
welcoming

Place provides 
opportunities

Place supports 
sustainable 

growth

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   3 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 60



Our indicators of success:

All children are healthy and ready to succeed 
when they start school and all children and 

young adults achieve their potential.

All residents are protected from harm, through 
support in times of need and by safeguarding 

and protecting those who are vulnerable.

Reduced risk of deliberate harm, accidental injury      
and neglect for both children and adults

Reduced rates of children and adults                     
needing protection and care 

Fewer children and young people entering                   
the youth justice system

More people with Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities supported to know their rights and  

receiving joined up support 

More carers receiving appropriate support

More families staying together                                
through early intervention

More mothers breastfeeding for longer

Fewer mothers smoking in pregnancy

More children school ready

All pupils achieving at all key stages

More young people participating in           
apprenticeships and learning

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   4 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 61



Our indicators of success:

All residents have good mental wellbeing, are 
resilient, enjoy life, and are able to cope with 

life’s challenges.

All residents feel healthy and remain in a good 
state of health for as long as possible.

More people are physically active                          
including the over 50’s

More people are a healthy weight

Reduced harm from drugs, alcohol and smoking

Fewer people dying early from diseases 

More children have good oral health

Fewer older people suffering from falls

Fewer people experiencing lengthy hospital stays 
through reablement and care at home

Children and young people have high self-esteem      
and are satisfied with their life, including being           

free from bullying at school

Fewer people have common and severe                  
mental health disorders

People have good levels of social contact and             
are not lonely or isolated, including adult care         

users, older people and carers

Fewer households living in fuel poverty

Fewer people living in deprivation, suffering the impact 
of Welfare Reform or living in poverty in later life

More households prevented from becoming homeless

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   5 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 62



Our indicators of success:

All residents have the opportunities they need to 
enable them to help themselves, their loved ones 

and their communities to achieve their full potential.

The borough is a place where people age 
well, can live with dignity and have equitable 

access to services and opportunities.

Younger and older people engaging in   
intergenerational activities

More people aged 50-64 in employment,              
training or volunteering

More older people participating in community activities 

People supported to live well with dementia

People have access to quality home care,         
residential and nursing care services

People have access to good or outstanding             
places of learning

People have higher levels of qualifications and skills, 
including being able to access and use technology

More people have higher earnings

More Rochdale employees receiving the living wage, 
getting a fair day’s pay for a fair day’s work 

More people in good employment or engaging in 
meaningful activity during the working day

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   6 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 63



Our indicators of success:

The borough is friendly,                           
inclusive and co-operative.

The borough is safe, resilient, and clean and 
has good quality places where people choose 

to live, work and invest.

More and a mix of affordable and higher value 
homes, including land being made available to                  

support development

Sustainable homes that have age and      
environmentally friendly features

More empty homes being brought back into use         
and an improved private rented sector

Air and land free from pollution and infrastructure      
that protects against climate change by using        

natural/renewable sources

Accessible, quality highways and transport           
options, including cycling and walking

Reduced crime and antisocial behaviour

People come together through creative                        
and cultural opportunities 

More people engaging in volunteering, acts of    
kindness and doing things for each other

Fewer people experiencing discrimination and 
greater consideration of the needs of people                            
who are disadvantaged or suffer inequality

More people living in harmony together, whatever    
their background, religion or culture 

More people have their voice heard through 
engagement and consultation, especially young people 

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   7 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 64



Our indicators of success:

The borough has thriving growing businesses 
and new enterprises and creates the conditions 

for high skill levels and high quality jobs.

The borough has sound finances and is able to 
provide services to meet residents needs now 

and in the future.

Maximised income through investment, sponsorship, 
funding and rates and through better use of the local 

environment, heritage and buildings

People spending money on local goods and services to 
keep more of the Rochdale pound in Rochdale

Reduced demand on health and care services          
(A&E, hospitals, GP’s)

Healthy, stable and quality workforces, particularly        
in key sectors (care, social work etc.)

Improved availability and reliability of online access 
including better internet speeds and public wifi

Service delivery models making use of             
technology and data

More jobs created and good quality apprenticeships

Higher proportion of skilled work in the labour market 

Town centres offer a balance of employment, 
commercial, leisure, community, housing,          

healthcare and educational use

More businesses relocating, starting up                           
or expanding in the borough

More land and sites for employment  

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   8 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 65



Cooperation
Public services, partners, citizens, businesses and the 
voluntary and community sector will share decision 
making and jointly design and deliver services.

Strengthening community assets
Individuals and families will use their skills, experiences and  

kindness to develop and improve their own communities.

Prevention and intervention
Public services, citizens and businesses will take action  
to stop problems from arising or becoming worse. 

Addressing the climate emergency
Public services, partners, citizens, businesses and the 

voluntary and community sector will increase their 
efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere 

and reduce their own impact on the planet, 
to help to address the climate emergency.  

Our ways of working:
Everyone in the borough will make 
things better for themselves and others

Integrated and local
Public services, partners and the voluntary and community 
sector will share skills, expertise and resources to deliver 
services at the right time and in the right places. 

Collective change 
Individuals will practice self-help and make choices so 
that they are able to look after themselves and others. 

9032_CorporatePlan_A4Landscape_V6.indd   9 23/10/2019   12:10

P
age 66



 

Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 29th October 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Julie Murphy ( For 
Children's & 
Neighbourhoods 
Directorates)

Public/Private Document Public 

Discretionary Fees & Charges

Executive Summary

1. During the years of austerity there have been significant increases to the level 
of Fees and Charges, which have resulted in pressures across some income 
budgets. It was decided that the budget assumptions, agreed by Cabinet on 
30th July 2019, would recommended a nil increase for 2020/21.

Services were requested to review the level of their charges to identify any 
opportunities to increase charges above nil inflation, in order to contribute 
towards bridging the budget gap.

This report provides Cabinet Members with the proposed fees and charges 
by service for 2020/21, and details of any fees and charges above the 0% 
general uplift.

 

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Cabinet consider the proposals in this report and, confirm or otherwise, to 
progress with the proposed discretionary fees and charges for consultation.

Cabinet consider the fees and charges in relation to the supply of waste bins 
be implemented from February 2020.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The fees and charges in this report have been proposed by each 
Directorate, taking into account the 0% general uplift in Discretionary Fees 
and Charges agreed at Cabinet on 30th July. Any uplifts that are not in line 
with the 0% proposal, are highlighted in section 5.3.

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges 
as part of the budget setting process. It is a requirement of this process that 
Elected Members agree an appropriate general level of increase. For the 
2020/21 financial year, Cabinet on 30th July approved a 0% increase.

The proposed fee levels for the 2020/21 financial year are included in 
Appendix 1. Increases above the agreed 0% uplift are detailed in section 
5.3.

Alternatives Considered

The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 
potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more 
difficult to achieve a balanced budget. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

A full list of all proposed fees and charges for 2020/21 are included in 
appendix 1.  Increases above the agreed 0% uplift are highlighted below.

The proposal to introduce charges for replacement bins will increase income 
in 2019/20 by approximately £30k with the full year forecast of £189k in 
2020/21. 

5.3

5.4

All other increases in charges are not expected to deliver additional income, 
but to ensure that the budgeted level of income is achieved.

Uplifts above the 0% increase are listed below.

Libraries
 Play sets / Music sets these are increasingly difficult to source making 

them more expensive
 Microfilm prints costs of prints has risen as part of maintenance 

contracts.
 Replacement membership cards (adults). The service has found an 

increase in the number of cards being lost and the admin surrounding 
a lost card is quite significant.

 Lost or damaged books. The service hasn’t increased the charge in a 
number of years and the increase reflect this.

Public Protection
  Animal licensing fees.

Adult Care 
 Appointeeship fee to introduce a tiered charge

Page 68



 Deferred payments admin fee scheme. The scheme should be self-
financing

 Transport (per journey). Very little income as low usage.

Planning and Estates 
 All charges have been increased but the service does not believe 

that this will affect the use of the services.

Neighbourhoods
 Charges for replacement bins

Risk and Policy Implications

The Service has reviewed its charges against relevant legislation to ensure 
that all transactions remain compliant with the relevant statutes governing 
Local Authority activities.

6.  

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the proposed charges identified 
within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Finance, and 
opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been informed of the proposed 
charges for 2020/21. The report will be presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny on 28 October 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Background papers to this report 
can be obtained from Stuart 
Smith

Number 1 Riverside
Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Julie Murphy
Julie.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk
 

Page 69

mailto:Julie.murphy@rochdale.gov.uk


Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Strategic Housing

Sub-Area Ref Desc

Current 

Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Strat Housing R0347 Landlord's First Application £873.00 £873.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0348 Landlord's Subsequent Application £740.00 £740.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0349 Five Yearly Inspection £45.00 £45.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0350 Supplement For Inadequate Applications £144.00 £144.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0351 Supplement For Initial Refusal Of A Licence £959.00 £959.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0352 Managing Agent Fee £183.00 £183.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing R0353

Houses In Multiple Occupation Licensing 

Scheme Fees: Supplement For: Variations To 

A Licence £297.00 £297.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing

Rented accommodation -service of statutory 

notices, up to 10 deficiencies £335.00 £335.00 £0.00 0.00%

Strat Housing

Further charge for each subsequent additional  

deficiency £11.50 £11.50 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 70



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Environmental Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

EM R1029 Mini Soccer League (Bowlee) Per Pitch £49.00 £49.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1030 Mini Soccer League without accommodation per season £138.00 £138.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1031 Mini Soccer League with accommodation £221.00 £221.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1032 Rounder's League £1,117.00 £1,117.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1033 Pitch Letting without changing accommodation £413.00 £413.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1034 Pitch Letting with changing accommodation £714.00 £714.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1035 Friendly Letting without changing accommodation £52.00 £52.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1036 Friendly Letting with changing accommodation £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1078 Mot Tests - Private £47.00 £47.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1080 Repairs - Private £45.00 £45.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Allotments Charge per square metre £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0905 1100L Wheeled Bin £453.00 £453.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0906 240L Wheeled Bin £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0907 360L Wheeled Bin £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0908 660L Wheeled Bin £378.00 £378.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1888 140L Wheeled Bin £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM 880L Wheeled Bin £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Any Household White Goods Item that would be taken on moving house £33.00 £33.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0913 Small Electrical Items (Hi - Fi Systems, Microwaves, TV's) Up To 5 Items £33.00 £33.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0942

Bed, Mattress, Carpet, Chairs, Suites - Any General household item That 

would be taken on moving house. £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0943 Medical Referee Fee £28.00 £28.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0944 Full Grave £1,098.00 £1,098.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0945 Non-Resident £1,976.00 £1,976.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0946 Cremated Remains - Resident £722.00 £722.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0947 Cremated Remains - Non-Resident £1,305.00 £1,305.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0950 Private Grave Adult Resident £950.00 £950.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0951 Private Grave Adult Non-Resident £1,425.00 £1,425.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0952 Private Grave With Chamber £353.00 £353.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0955 Public Grave Adult £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0956 Cremated Remains Up To FT Resident £256.00 £256.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0957 Cremated Remains Up To FT Non-Resident £461.00 £461.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0958 Cremated Remains Per Additional (No Suggestions) £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0959 Cremated Remains Under Turf £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0960 General Charges: Use Of Cemetery Chapel £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0961 General Charges: Concrete Heading £252.00 £252.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0962 General Charges: Additional Inscription £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0963 Right To Erect Memorial £141.00 £141.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0964 Numberstone £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0967 Cremation Fees Adult £726.00 £726.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0968 Burial Of Remains Cremated Elsewhere In Garden £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0990 Book Of Remembrance £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0991 Book Of Remembrance £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0992 Book Of Remembrance £202.00 £202.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0993 Floral Designs £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0994 Other Designs £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0995 Memorial Cards £39.00 £39.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0996 Memorial Cards £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 71



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Environmental Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

EM R0997 Memorial Cards £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0998 Rose Bush & Plaque For 10 yrs £155.00 £155.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0999 Memorial Wall Plaque For 10 yrs £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1667 Replacement/Additional Plaques £78.00 £78.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1668 Replacement Memorial £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1000 Children's Garden Plaque For 10 yrs £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1001 Memorial Stone Vase For 10 yrs £547.00 £547.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1002 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Small £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1003 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Large £421.00 £421.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1004 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Re Open £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1005 Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Urn £52.00 £52.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1006 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Black £3.80 £3.80 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1007 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Gold £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1008 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Black £1.05 £1.05 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1009 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs - Gold £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1010 New Tree & Plaque £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1011 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs - Double £366.00 £366.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1012 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs - Single £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1013 Search Fee £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1014 Wooden Casket £59.00 £59.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1015 Wooden Cross / Stone Marker & Plaque £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1016 Accompanied Selection Of New Graves £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1513 Memorial Bench and Plaque with ten year lease £948.00 £948.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0983 Site Fees £800.00 £800.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0984 Individual Rides £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0985 Bouncy Castles £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0986 Adult Season Ticket £54.00 £54.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0987 Adult Day Pass £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0988 Junior/Concession Season Ticket £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R0989 Junior/Concession Day Pass £3.60 £3.60 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1037 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Car Park £2.50 £2.50 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1038 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Sellers (Car) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1039 Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Estate cars, Small Vans & 4x4) £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1040 Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Transit Van and upward) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Non-attended cremations £425.00 £425.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Accompanied visits/search £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1898 Transfer of ownership of plot £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Lost papers/deeds £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Scattering of ashes £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM R1896 Sedum Matting £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00%

EM Replacement Bins £0.00 £20.00 As per recommendation 2.2 in report

P
age 72



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Public Protection R1876 New - Food Hygiene Rescore £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1877 New - Food hygiene Advisory Visit - hourly rate £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1107 Car Boot Sales - Fee per car £4.20 £4.20 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1109 Council Car Boot Sales - fee per car £4.20 £4.20 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1112 Administration Fee For Work In Default £46.00 £46.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1113 Information Search Fee: Minimum Charge (Up To First Hour) £99.00 £99.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1114 Information Search Fee: Each Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof £40.00 £40.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1115 Information Search Fee: Reclamation Of Stray Dogs £103.00 £103.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1116 Individual Export Certificates request with less than 5 working days notice - first hour cost  £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1117 Individual Export Certificate request with 5 or more working days notice £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1118

Batch Certs Only Applicable In Strictly Limited Circumstances (Inc. Low Risk Product And 

Subject To A Audit System) £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1268 Grant, renewal, transfer fee for Sexual Establishment Venue (SEV) £1,578.00 £1,578.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1269 Street Trading: - Annual Consent £944.00 £944.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1270 Street Trading: - Annual Licence £1,364.00 £1,364.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1271 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At Specific Event: Up To 5 days £220.00 £220.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1272 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At Specific Event: Up To 2 days £87.00 £87.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1273 Ear Piercing/Tattooing/Acupuncture £158.00 £158.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1274 Animal Boarding Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1275 Dog Breeding Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1277 Riding Establishment Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1278 Dangerous Animals Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection Selling Animals Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection Animals for exhibition Separate Sheet Separate Sheet

Public Protection R1282 Licensing Pre - Application Consultation Fee £31.00 £31.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1283 Licensing Street Trading - Change Of Vehicle £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1825 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (grant and renewal) £716.00 £716.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1826 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (multiple sites)

£716 plus £600 

per additional site

£716 plus £600 

per additional 

site

Public Protection R1828 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from collector's licence to site licence £716.00 £716.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1829 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from site licence to collector's licence £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1830 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change of licensee's details £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1831 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change licenced sites £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1832 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change site managers £55.00 £55.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1833 Scrap Metal certified copy of licence £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1890

Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / Studio) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced 

payment £61.00 £61.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1891 Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £78.00 £78.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 73



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Public Protection R1892 Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £95.00 £95.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1893 Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with advanced payment £112.00 £112.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1894

Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / Studio) - Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced 

payment £78.00 £78.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1895 Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £95.00 £95.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1896 Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £112.00 £112.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1897 Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) -  Demestes , carpet beetles with advanced payment £130.00 £130.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1293 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - price per nest invoice requested £121.00 £121.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1295

Domestic Premises - Assessment / monitoring charge, including call out charge if 

treatment inappropriate. £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1296 Domestic Premises - Advisory visit with not treatment. £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1297 Domestic Premises - re-booking fee - to rebook/ change an appointment time £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1298 Domestic Premises - cancellation of appointment £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Pest Port Scheme - 12 months scheme with up to 3 treatments £128.00 £128.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1417 Drivers: Initial Application (1 year licence) £110.00 £110.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Drivers: Initial Application (3 year licence) £258.00 £258.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1418 Drivers: Renewal (1 year licence) £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1419 Drivers: Combined Initial (1 year) £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Drivers: Combined initial (3 year) £420.00 £420.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1420 Drivers: Combined Renewal (1 year) £126.00 £126.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1422 Drivers: Replacement Badge £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1424 Drivers: Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1425 Drivers: Replacement Lanyard £3.20 £3.20 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1426 Drivers: Drivers Declaration £8.40 £8.40 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1428 Vehicles: Plate Fee £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1429 Change Of Vehicle £122.00 £122.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1430 Change Of Owner £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1431 Retest Charge £62.00 £62.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1432 Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1433 Replacement Window Stickers £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1435 Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (1 year licence) £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (5 year licence) £1,042.00 £1,042.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1436 Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (1 year licence) £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (5 year licence) £1,980.00 £1,980.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1437 Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (1 year licence) £556.00 £556.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (5 year licence) £2,781.00 £2,781.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1438 Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (1 year licence) £713.00 £713.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (5 year licence) £3,561.00 £3,561.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (1 year licence) £872.00 £872.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (5 year licence) £4,356.00 £4,356.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,028.00 £1,028.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 74



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,138.00 £5,138.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,184.00 £1,184.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,919.00 £5,919.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,340.00 £1,340.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (5 year licence) £6,700.00 £6,700.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,495.00 £1,495.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (5 year licence) £7,478.00 £7,478.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1440 Misc.: Information Letter (Cost Includes Up To 1 Hours Work And A Cost Of Letter) £93.00 £93.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1441 Misc.: Information Check (Each Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof) £23.00 £23.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1442 Misc.: Insurance £48.00 £48.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Front plate carrier £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Rear plate carrier £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Button and key £1.10 £1.10 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Window pouch £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Area Knowledge Re-test £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Coaching session £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Coaching (missed appointment) £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1443 Hourly Rate For Work Not Included Below £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1444 Hourly Rate : Weights Up To 5 kg £8.40 £8.40 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1445 Hourly Rate: Weights Above 5 kg £10.40 £10.40 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1446 Linear Measures - Not Exceeding 3 Meters £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1447 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): Not Exceeding 1 Litre £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1448 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): Cubic Ballast £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1449 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division) Liquid Capacity: Templates £67.00 £67.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1450 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 15 kg £40.00 £40.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1451 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 100 kg £57.00 £57.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1452 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 250 kg £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1453 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 1 Tonne £140.00 £140.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1454 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 10 Tonne £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1455 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 30 Tonne £463.00 £463.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1456 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up To 60 Tonne £694.00 £694.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1457 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: Up To 150 ml £28.00 £28.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1458 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: Other £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1459 Liquid Fuel And Lubricants £98.00 £98.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1460 Unsubdivisional Container: Multigrade-Single Outlet £135.00 £135.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1461 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other £242.00 £242.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1462 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other-Single Outlet £109.00 £109.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1463 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: Other  £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1464 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 1 Meter £158.00 £158.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1465 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 2 Meters £255.00 £255.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1466 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 3 Meters £348.00 £348.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 75



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Public Protection R1467 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 4 Meters £439.00 £439.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1468 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 5 Meters £534.00 £534.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1469 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 6 Meters £623.00 £623.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1470 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 7 Meters £733.00 £733.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1471 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 8 Meters £814.00 £814.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1472 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter System: Wet Hose £257.00 £257.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1473 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter System: Dry Hose £288.00 £288.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1474 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: To 7600 Litres £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1475 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Initial £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1476 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Spare £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1477 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick System: Replace £62.00 £62.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1481 Primary Authority Agreement Hourly rate £61.00 £61.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1290

Commercial Premises - Pest Control Work -  price per hour minimum charge of 1 hour 

(Based on historical data, if new data identifies that the full unit cost/hourly £115.00 £115.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1291 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - price per nest with advanced payment £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1292 Domestic premises - Wasp nest - price per nest with advanced payment £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1889 Domestic premises - Ants with advanced payment £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1294 Domestic Premises - Squirrel Treatment £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1427 Vehicles: Annual Fee £339.00 £339.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1874 New - Treatment for Rats (including 2 revisits) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1875 New - Treatment for Mice (including 2 revisits) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1279 Grant, renewal or transfer fee for Sex Shop Establishment £1,148.00 £1,148.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Drivers Renewal (3 year licence) £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Drivers: Combined Renewal (3 year) £378.00 £378.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1827 Scrap Metal Collectors Licence (grant and renewal) £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection R1276 Pet Shop £158.00 £158.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Hand delivery of export certificates to trader premises within Rochdale borough £35.00 £35.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Pleasure Boat Licence (carrying up to 12 passengers) £339.00 £339.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Public Health funeral officer recharge cost - hourly rate per officer £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00%

Public Protection Work in default / non-compliance officer recharge cost - hourly rate per officer £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 76



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Public Protection - Animal Licensing Fees

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

Public Protection Dog Breeding:

Public Protection Application Fee £278.00 £278.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year < 5 dogs £141.00 £141.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 5 - 10 dogs £146.00 £146.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 15 dogs £151.00 £151.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee  1 year > 15 dogs £156.00 £156.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year < 5 dogs £246.00 £246.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 5 - 10 dogs £251.00 £251.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 15 dogs £256.00 £256.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee  2 year > 15 dogs £261.00 £261.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year < 5 dogs £351.00 £351.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 5 - 10 dogs £356.00 £356.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 15 dogs £361.00 £361.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee  3 year > 15 dogs £366.00 £366.00 n/a

Public Protection

Public Protection Boarding of cats and / or dogs:

Public Protection Application Fee £276.00 £276.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 years £136.00 £136.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 years £241.00 £241.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 years £305.00 £305.00 n/a

Public Protection

Public Protection Selling Animals as Pets (Pet Shops):

Public Protection Application Fee £276.00 £276.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year £136.00 £136.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 years £241.00 £241.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 years £346.00 £346.00 n/a

Public Protection

Public Protection Hiring out Horses:

Public Protection Application Fee £376.00 £376.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year < 10 horses £141.00 £141.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 19 horses £146.00 £146.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year 20 - 29 horses £151.00 £151.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 1 year > 30 horses £156.00 £156.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year < 10 horses £306.00 £306.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 19 horses £311.00 £311.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year 20 - 29 horses £316.00 £316.00 n/a

P
age 77



Public Protection Grant Fee 2 year > 30 horses £321.00 £321.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year < 10 horses £471.00 £471.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 19 horses £476.00 £476.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year 20 - 29 horses £481.00 £481.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee 3 year > 30 horses £486.00 £486.00 n/a

Public Protection

Public Protection Dangerous Wild Animals (2 year licence only):

Public Protection Application Fee Dwarf Caiman or Serval £276.00 £276.00 n/a

Public Protection Application Fee Other animal Price on application

Public Protection Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Dwarf Caiman or Serval £136.00 £136.00 n/a

Public Protection Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Other animal Price on application

Public Protection

Public Protection Zoo Licence:

Public Protection Application Fee Price on application

Public Protection Grant Fee Price on application

Public Protection

Public Protection All Licenses:

Public Protection Variation Fee £45.00 £45.00 n/a

Public Protection Inspection of additional premises £50.00 per hour

Public Protection Certified copy of licence £20.00 £20.00 n/a

P
age 78



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Registrars

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

% Increase

REGISTRARS R1373F Priority Fees For Certificate Issue £10.00 £10.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1375F Ceremonies: Confetti £1.90 £1.90 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1376F Plastic Wallets £0.70 £0.70 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1388F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: M-F £302.00 £302.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1389F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sat £323.00 £323.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1390F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sun/BH £370.00 £370.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1382F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sat £396.00 £396.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1383F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sun/BH £422.00 £422.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1394F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: M-F £215.00 £215.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1395F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sat £266.00 £266.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1396F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sun/BH £302.00 £302.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1393F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Ste: Sun/ £260.00 £260.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1391F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Suite: M- £146.00 £146.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1392F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Roche Suite: Sa £193.00 £193.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1385F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees - Roche Ste: Sun/BH £230.00 £230.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1384F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche Suite: Sat £172.00 £172.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1397F Name Deed - Adult £57.00 £57.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1398F Name Deed - Child £62.00 £62.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1408F Name Deed - Family Application £186.00 £186.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1399F Purchase Of Additional Name Deed £13.00 £13.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1400F Licensing Of Venues Of Civil Ceremonies £1,280.00 £1,280.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1367F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche Suite (M-Th) £112.00 £112.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1374F Ceremonies: Provisional Ceremony Booking Fee £31.00 £31.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1401F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: M-F £161.00 £161.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1402F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sat £238.00 £238.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1403F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sun £323.00 £323.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1886 Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees : Roche Suite( Fri) £136.00 £136.00 0.00%

REGISTRARS R1812 Credit Card Fee (non-VATable Purchases) £0.00 £0.00 n/a

REGISTRARS R1381F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Mon-Fri £373.00 £373.00 0.00%

P
age 79



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Libraries

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

LIBRARIES Various Item Request £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Talking Books, Playaways & Learn a Language £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 n/a

LIBRARIES Various Library Fine (overdue items per day) £0.20 £0.20 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Maximum Level Of Fine For Overdue Books £12.25 £12.25 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Meeting Room - Priv Sect / Profit Making Groups £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 B and W) £0.10 £0.10 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Photocopying (A4 B+W) £0.10 £0.10 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Play Sets / Music Sets £9.70 £10.00 £0.30 3.09%

These sets are increasingly diffcult to source 

making them more expensive

LIBRARIES Various Microfilm prints £1.00 £1.50 £0.50 50.00%

Costs of prints has risen as part of maintenance 

contracts

LIBRARIES Various Replacement Membership Cards (Adult) £2.50 £2.60 £0.10 4.00%

The service has found an increase in the numbers 

of cards being lost and the admin surrounding a 

lost card is quite significant

LIBRARIES Various Replacement Membership Cards (Under 17 / Over 60) £1.25 £1.25 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 Colour) £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £7.50 £7.50 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Local History Digital Photography prints £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various A4 colour £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES Various Lost or damaged Books £2.10 £2.50 £0.40 19.05%

The service hasn't increased the charge in a 

number of years and the increase reflects this

LIBRARIES A3 colour £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

LIBRARIES A3 Black & White £0.20 £0.20 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 80



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

FINANCE SERVICES R0507 Charges for Blue Badge £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00%

FINANCE SERVICES R0612 Charities Support Management Charge £44.00 £44.00 £0.00 0.00%

FINANCE SERVICES R0410 Liability Order - Council Tax £101.50 £101.50 £0.00 0.00%

FINANCE SERVICES R0411 Liability Order - NNDR £123.50 £123.50 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0090 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg – Current Year £19.85 £19.85 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0091 Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg - Historic £43.05 £43.05 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0092 Conf On Official Docs – to prove on Elect Reg £19.85 £19.85 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0093 Public Path Orders:- Within Gen Range + Adv Costs £1,507.80 £1,507.80 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0094 Public Path Orders:- Additional Rates £162.75 £162.75 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0095 Street Closure:- Within A General Range £1,507.80 £1,507.80 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0096 Street Closure:- Additional Rates £162.75 £162.75 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0097 Prosecution (Court) Costs Recovered

LEGAL & HR R0098F - a Local Land Charges Search:- Full Search CON29 £166.00 £166.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0098F - b Local Land Charges Search £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0099F Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries numbered 4 to 21 £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries number 22 common land £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0100F Local Land Charges Search:- Additional Enquiries £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0101F Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0103F Local Land Charges Search:- Copy Searches £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0113 Sales Of Land And Property: Under £5,000 £916.65 £916.65 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0114

Sales Of Land And Property:

£5,001 - £10,000 £916.65 £916.65 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0115

Sales Of Land And Property:

£10,001 - £15,000 £916.65 £916.65 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0116

Sales Of Land And Property:

£15,001 - £20,000 £1,358.70 £1,358.70 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0117

Sales Of Land And Property:

£20,001 - £25,000 £1,358.70 £1,358.70 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0118

Sales Of Land And Property:

£25,001 - £30,000 £1,358.70 £1,358.70 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0119

Sales Of Land And Property:

£30,001 - £60,000 £1,684.20 £1,684.20 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0120

Sales Of Land And Property:

£60,001 - £100,000 £2,097.90 £2,097.90 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0121

Sales Of Land And Property:

£100,001 - £250,000 £2,746.80 £2,746.80 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 81



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Resources

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

LEGAL & HR R0122 Sales Of Land And Property: Over £250,000 £3,337.95 £3,337.95 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0123 Auctions 4% or £2000 min 4% or £2000 min

LEGAL & HR R0124 Redemptions (One Per Charge) £219.45 £219.45 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0125 Redemptions (Two Charges) £427.35 £427.35 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0126 Mortgage Questionnaires £214.20 £214.20 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0127 Deeds Of Postponement £755.00 £755.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0128 Title Questionnaires:- Up To 20 Questions £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0129 Title Questionnaires:- Above 20 Questions £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0130 Title Questionnaires:- Per Additional Question (>20) £9.97 £9.97 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0132 Registration Fees:- Commercial £214.20 £214.20 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0133 Registration Fees:- Private £113.40 £113.40 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0134 Registration Fees:- Sealing Fee £77.17 £77.17 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0135 Registration Fees:- Copies For Solicitors £77.17 £77.17 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0136 Shop Leases £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0137 Licenses:- Community and Residential Commercial £733.95 £733.95 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0138 Licenses:- License To Assign £1,046.85 £1,046.85 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0139 Licenses:- License To Sublet (Multiple Licenses) £1,046.85 £1,046.85 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0140 Deeds Of Variation, Rectification etc. £755.00 £755.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0141 Surrender £755.00 £755.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0142 Deeds Of Easement:- Residential £755.00 £755.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0143 Deeds Of Easement:- Commercial £1,507.80 £1,507.80 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0144 Agreements To Adopt Highways £1,750.00 £1,750.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0145 Section 106 Agreements (Planning Agreements) £1,507.80 £1,507.80 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0146 Section 278 Agreements (Highway Works) £1,507.80 £1,507.80 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0147 Building Agreements £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0148 Leases/Premiums – Residential £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR R0149 Industrial Leases - £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

COMMERCIAL R0110 Copies Of Documents £1.15 (min £25) £1.15 (min £25)

COMMERCIAL R0111 Charities Admin – Committee Services Meeting £35.28 £35.28 £0.00 0.00%

COMMERCIAL R1882 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Loan/Facilitty Agreements £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Temporary Public Path Orders £800.00 £800.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Commercial Leases £2,000.00 £2,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

LEGAL & HR Community Leases £1,000.00 £1,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 82



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0838 Parking Dispensations £41.00 £41.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0839 Parking Suspensions: Pay & Display Bays £31.00 £31.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0840

Parking Suspensions: Limited Waiting Bays/Disabled Bays/Loading Bays/Taxi 

Ranks £31.00 £31.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0841 Use Of Free Parks

HIGHWAYS R0842 Use Of Pay & Display Car Parks

HIGHWAYS R0618 Extension Of S.38 Agreement £1,001.00 £1,001.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0619 S.278/S.106 Agreement Where Built By RMBC £1,778.00 £1,778.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0626

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£45,000 £4,509.00 £4,509.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0627

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£20,000 £3,346.00 £3,346.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0628

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£10,000 £2,108.00 £2,108.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0629 Re-Submission Of Plans To Check Compliance With Specification And Design £126.00 £126.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0630 Highway Records Information £91.00 £91.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0634 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Registration Of Firm & Vetting £421.00 £421.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0635

Placement Of Skips On The Highway: One-Off Permit For Non-Registered 

Firm £115.00 £115.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0636 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Removal Of Skip £339.00 £339.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0637 Licence For Placement Of Scaffold Over Highway £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0638 Licence For Placement Of Hoardings, Cranes & MEWP's On The Highway £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0639 Vehicular Crossings: Domestic £112.00 £112.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0640 Vehicular Crossings: Industrial £170.00 £170.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0641 Accident Debris Removal £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0642 Recoverable Works: Admin Fees £119.00 £119.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License – permanent fittings £520.00 £520.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Erection of tourist signs on the highway £260.00 £260.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Erection of new housing site signs in the highway £260.00 £260.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Road closures for commercial events on the highway using RTRA section 16A. £547.00 £547.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Supply of copies of Traffic Orders (excludes requests from GMP) £164.00 £164.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License £477.00 £477.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0652 Street Café License’s: Annual Renewal Of License £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0853 Home Watch Sign Consents (approval to place sign on the highway only) £48.00 £48.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0854

Application For Privately Funded Temporary Direction Signs (Housing Dev't 

Signs) £137.00 £137.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0855 Advance Direction Signs: Non Commercial (per sign face) £295.00 £295.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0856 Advance Direction Signs: Commercial (per sign face) £491.00 £491.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0614 Sponsored Boundary Signs n/a n/a

HIGHWAYS R0615 Sponsored Roundabout Signs n/a n/a

HIGHWAYS R0616

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£1.5M 5% 5%

HIGHWAYS R0617

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£100,000 6% 6%

HIGHWAYS R0620 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £100,000 18% 18%

HIGHWAYS R0621 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £150,000 15% 15%

P
age 83



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0624

Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 

£100,000 5% 5%

HIGHWAYS R0625 Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Over £45,000 6% 6%

HIGHWAYS R0632 Use Of Planning-Provide And Layout

HIGHWAYS R0633 Bollards To Prevent Access (Non-Highway)

HIGHWAYS R0643

S.38 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 

£100,000

HIGHWAYS R0645 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent/Experimental

HIGHWAYS R0648 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent Road Closures

HIGHWAYS R0649 Road Marking Requests

HIGHWAYS Production of Traffic management Plan for events or roadworks At cost (min £500) At cost (min £500)

HIGHWAYS

Design and provision of road signage, barriers, etc. to facilitate an event or 

roadworks. At cost (min £500) At cost (min £500)

HIGHWAYS R0653 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0654 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0655 Five Day Car Park Pass- Month 3 £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0656 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £151.00 £151.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0657 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0658 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0659 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0660 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0661 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0662 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £377.00 £377.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0663 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £415.00 £415.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0664 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £453.00 £453.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0665 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £45.00 £45.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0666 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0667 Five Day Car Park Pass- Month 3 £135.00 £135.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0668 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0669 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0670 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £269.00 £269.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0671 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £314.00 £314.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0672 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £359.00 £359.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0673 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £404.00 £404.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0674 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £449.00 £449.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0675 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £494.00 £494.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 84



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0676 Five Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £539.00 £539.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0677 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0678 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0679 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 3 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0680 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £167.00 £167.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0681 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £209.00 £209.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0682 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £251.00 £251.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0683 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0684 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £335.00 £335.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0685 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £376.00 £376.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0686 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £418.00 £418.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0687 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £460.00 £460.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0688 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £502.00 £502.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0689 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 1 £49.00 £49.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0690 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 2 £98.00 £98.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0691 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 3 £147.00 £147.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0692 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 4 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0693 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 5 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0694 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 6 £294.00 £294.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0695 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 7 £343.00 £343.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0696 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 8 £392.00 £392.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0697 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 9 £441.00 £441.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0698 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 10 £490.00 £490.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0699 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 11 £539.00 £539.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0700 Six Day Car Park Pass - Month 12 £588.00 £588.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0701 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0702 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0703 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £77.00 £77.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0704 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0705 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £128.00 £128.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0706 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £153.00 £153.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0707 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £179.00 £179.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 85



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0708 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 8 £204.00 £204.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0709 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 9 £230.00 £230.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0710 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 10 £255.00 £255.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0711 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £281.00 £281.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0712 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0713 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £33.00 £33.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0714 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £65.00 £65.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0715 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £98.00 £98.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0716 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £131.00 £131.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0717 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £163.00 £163.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0718 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0719 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £228.00 £228.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0720 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £261.00 £261.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0721 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £294.00 £294.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0722 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £326.00 £326.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0723 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £359.00 £359.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0724 Five Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £392.00 £392.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0725 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0726 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £57.00 £57.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0727 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £86.00 £86.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0728 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £114.00 £114.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0729 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0730 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £171.00 £171.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0731 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0732 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 8 £228.00 £228.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0733 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 9 £257.00 £257.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0734 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 – Month 10 £286.00 £286.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0735 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £314.00 £314.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0736 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £343.00 £343.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0737 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £36.00 £36.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0738 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £71.00 £71.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0739 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £107.00 £107.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 86



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0740 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0741 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £179.00 £179.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0742 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £214.00 £214.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0743 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £250.00 £250.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0744 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £286.00 £286.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0745 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £321.00 £321.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0746 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £357.00 £357.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0747 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £393.00 £393.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0748 Six Day Car Park Passes Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £428.00 £428.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0749 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 1 £31.00 £31.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0750 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 2 £61.00 £61.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0751 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 3 £92.00 £92.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0752 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 4 £122.00 £122.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0753 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 5 £153.00 £153.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0754 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 6 £184.00 £184.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0755 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 7 £214.00 £214.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0756 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 8 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0757 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 9 £275.00 £275.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0758 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 10 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0759 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 11 £337.00 £337.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0760 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 12 £367.00 £367.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0761 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 1 £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0762 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 2 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0763 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 3 £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0764 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 4 £151.00 £151.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0765 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 5 £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0766 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 6 £226.00 £226.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0767 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 7 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0768 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 8 £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0769 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 9 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0770 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 10 £377.00 £377.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0771 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 11 £415.00 £415.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 87



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS R0772 Five Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 12 £453.00 £453.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0773 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 1 £35.00 £35.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0774 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 2 £69.00 £69.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0775 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 3 £104.00 £104.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0776 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 4 £139.00 £139.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0777 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 5 £173.00 £173.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0778 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 6 £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0779 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 7 £243.00 £243.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0780 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 8 £277.00 £277.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0781 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 9 £312.00 £312.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0782 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 10 £347.00 £347.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0783 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 11 £381.00 £381.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0784 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 12 £416.00 £416.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0785 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 1 £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0786 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 2 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0787 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 3 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0788 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 4 £167.00 £167.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0789 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 5 £209.00 £209.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0790 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 6 £251.00 £251.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0791 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 7 £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0792 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 8 £335.00 £335.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0793 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 9 £376.00 £376.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0794 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 10 £418.00 £418.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0795 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 11 £460.00 £460.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0796 Six Day Car Park Passes Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 12 £502.00 £502.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0797 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 1 £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0798 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 2 £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0799 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 3 £217.00 £217.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 4 £290.00 £290.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 5 £362.00 £362.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0800 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 6 £435.00 £435.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 7 £507.00 £507.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 88



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Highways

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 8 £579.00 £579.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 9 £652.00 £652.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 10 £724.00 £724.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 11 £797.00 £797.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0801 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 12 £869.00 £869.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0805 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0806 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0807 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0808 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0809 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0810 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0811 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0817 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hr £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0818 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –3-4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0819 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –4-5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0820 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: –5-6 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0824 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0830 Middleton Short Stay 3 -4 hr £0.70 £0.70 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0831 Middleton Short Stay 4 -5 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0832 Middleton Short Stay 5 -6 hr £1.10 £1.10 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0828 Middleton Long Stay (Over 6hrs) £2.20 £2.20 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0833 Hollingworth Lake 0 - 2 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0834 Hollingworth Lake 2 - 4 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0835 Hollingworth Lake Over 4 hr £4.60 £4.60 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0836 Parking Permits: Residents £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0837 Parking Permits: Visitors

HIGHWAYS R0849 Parking Permits: Replacement for lost permit £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0646 Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary/Emergency £929.00 £929.00 £0.00 0.00%

HIGHWAYS R0647

Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary Carnivals, Fetes & Similar Events I.E. 

Charity Or Non-Commercial/Non-Profit Making £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 89



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

ESTATES

Annual licence fees for garden tenancies - 

current income receivable £80,000 per annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Separate charges applies using RPI and agreed with Finance

ESTATES

Average annual licence fees for garage plots 

current income receivable £64,000 per annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

See above

ESTATES

Annual licence fees for grazing licences - total 

income expected in 2017/18 = £29,000 per 

annum

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

Variable depending 

upon the size of the 

plot

See above

ESTATES

Minimum fee for granting landlord consent to the 

Council's tenants - increase to £250. £255.00 £260.50 £5.50 2.16%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

ESTATES

Increase non-returnable reservation fee for off-

market disposals from £100 to £200 £204.00 £208.50 £4.50 2.21%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

ESTATES

Introduction of a minimum surveyor's fee of £500 

charged on any disposal £510.00 £520.50 £10.50 2.06%
Increase not expected to affect use of serviceP

age 90



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Director (hourly rate) £76.00 £78.00 £2.00 2.63%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application Consultancy charge - Chief 

Planning Officer (hourly rate) £51.00 £52.50 £1.50 2.94%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - 

Development Manager (Grade 10) (hourly rate) £46.00 £47.00 £1.00 2.17%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Development Manager (Grade 9) (hourly rate) £41.00 £42.00 £1.00 2.44%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Senior 

Planning Officer (Grade 8) (hourly rate) £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.56%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Planning 

Officer (Grade 7) (hourly rate) £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 3.13%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant 

Planning Officer (Grade 5) (hourly rate) £22.00 £22.50 £0.50 2.27%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1357 Tree Preservation Order Notice (Copy) £35.00 £36.00 £1.00 2.86% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1358

Printed Copy Of Scanned Planning Application 

(Up To 10 Documents) - Excluding Large Format 

Plans (Over A4 Size) £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 3.03%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1359 Copy Of Large Application Plans (Over A4 Size) £8.40 £8.60 £0.20 2.38%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1360

Photocopies Of Correspondence And Other 

Papers On Planning Application Files, Up To A4 

Size £0.30 £0.31 £0.01 3.33%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1361 Township Green Infrastructure Plans £26.00 £27.00 £1.00 3.85% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1362 Public Art Strategy £13.00 £13.50 £0.50 3.85% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1363

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 

Site Plans >10 £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 3.45%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1364 Employment Land Study £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.13% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1284 LDF Core Strategy - Publication 2016 £19.00 £19.50 £0.50 2.63% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1285 LDF Background Paper 2010 £24.00 £24.50 £0.50 2.08% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1286

LDF Report On Consultation On Preferred 

Options £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.70%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1287 LDF Statement Of Community Involvement £14.00 £14.50 £0.50 3.57% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING R1288 LDF Core Strategy Preferred Options Report £19.00 £19.50 £0.50 2.63% Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1094

Building Regulation Decision Notice Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any Notice) £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.22%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1095

Building Completion Notice/Certificate Enquiry 

(Including Copy Of Any Notice) £60.00 £61.50 £1.50 2.50%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

P
age 91



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

BUILDING CONTROL R1096

Site History Search: Minimum Charge (Up To 

First Hour) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1097

Site History Search: Each Subsequent Hour Or 

Part Thereof £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1102

Provision Of Late Completion Inspections & Issue 

Of Completion Certificates £185.00 £189.00 £4.00 2.16%
Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1103

Administration Fee For Building Control Fee 

Refunds £65 min 66.50 min
Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1104

Administration Charges To Building Owners For 

Inspection/Specification For Securing Buildings 

Open To Access/Dilapidated £150.00 £153.00 £3.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL R1105 Section 80/81 Notices £180.00 £184.00 £4.00 2.22% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Planning Performance Agreements (to cover 

large scale, complex or strategic proposals where 

a bespoke fee is necessary to cover the work of 

the service) £0.00 #DIV/0!

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites biggeer than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects (Case Officer 

Meeting and written advice) £2,000.00 £2,040.00 £40.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site (Case Officer Meeting and 

Written Advice) £1,500.00 £1,530.00 £30.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to this category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms  (Case 

Officer Meeting and written advice £550.00 £561.00 £11.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 Dwelling / small 

commercial changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2   (Case Officer Meeting and Written 

Advice) £350.00 £360.00 £10.00 2.86%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING Pre application advice - Site visit householder £125.00 £127.50 £2.50 2.00% Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Charge to cover Officer time to visit property and 

provide written advice on works to fell/prune 

protected or dangerous trees £120.00 £122.50 £2.50 2.08%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Fee to cover works incurred in processing 

requests to modify terms of an existing S106 

agreement following a grant of planning 

permission £1,200.00 £1,225.00 £25.00 2.08%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

P
age 92



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

PLANNING

Requests for a more bespoke pre application 

service, including meetings with more senior 

officers or officers from other services (e.g. the 

Local Highway Authority), or where a quicker 

response is required, for example, to meet a bid 

or funding deadline, will be subject to a bespoke 

charge to cover the work of the service. £0.00 #DIV/0!

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites bigger than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects  (Written advice 

only) £1,500.00 £1,530.00 £30.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major 

Development - 10,000m2 of commercial 

floorspace / 50 plus homes / major infrastructure 

projects (roads and utilities) / sites bigger than 

1.5 hectares / energy projects  (Charge for follow 

up meeting with Case Officer) £750.00 £765.00 £15.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING 

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site. (Written advice only) £1,000.00 £1,020.00 £20.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING 

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 - 

49 homes / 1,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 

floorpsace / 100m2 - 999m2 retail floorspace / 

1.0 - 1.5 hectare site. (Charge for follow - up 

meeting with Case Officer) £600.00 £612.00 £12.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to this category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms (Written 

Advice only) £400.00 £408.00 £8.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

P
age 93



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

PLANNING

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 

100m2 - 999m2 commercial floorspace / up to 

100m2 retail floorspace / 2 - 9 homes / 

telecommunications development / Section 73 

variation of conditions relevant to category / 

change of use (excluding retail) / public realm 

and engineering work / minerals, waste and 

energy projects / wind turbine / telecoms(Charge 

for follow up meeting with Case Officer) £300.00 £306.00 £6.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling /small 

commercial changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2 (Written advice only) £250.00 £255.00 £5.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling / small 

commerciall changes of use or alterations eg up 

to 99m2 (Charge for Follow up meeting with Case 

Officer) £200.00 £204.00 £4.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application enquiry to vary / modify / 

discharge legal agreement for residential / 

commercial development (Meeting with Case 

Officer and written advice) £500.00 £510.00 £10.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

PLANNING

Pre application enquiry to vary / modify/ 

discharge legal agreement for residential 

development (single plot) Meeting with Case 

Officer and written advice £300.00 £306.00 £6.00 2.00%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

Copies of correspondence (excluding Decision 

Notice/Completion Certificates)

£12.00 up to 10 A4 

sides if over 10 

then 40p per A4 

side

£12.50 up to 10 A4 

sides if over 10 

then 40p per A4 

side £0.50 4.16%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

Provision of certificate/written confirmation of 

exemption from the provisions of Building 

Regulations(PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

Site inspection and written report relating to 

structures exempt from the building regulations 

(PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

Registering a change of agent/applicant/change 

of main contractor when work has commenced 

on site £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

Provision of pre-submission consultancy advice 

and research for technical information relating to 

an existing building e.g. foundation detail(PER 

HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL Pre-submission site visits (COST PER VISIT) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60% Increase not expected to affect use of service

BUILDING CONTROL

To provide a letter relating to the building 

regulations for work which is not covered by a 

valid building regulation application (PER HOUR) £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.60%

Increase not expected to affect use of service

P
age 94



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Planning & Estates

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

<£300)

40% of cost (min 

£75.00) + £230.00 

out of hours 

charge)

40% of cost (min 

£75.00) + £230.00 

out of hours 

charge)

Charge linked to contractor costs

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £301 - £1500)

20% of cost (min 

£120.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

20% of cost (min 

£120.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £1501 - £5000)

15% of cost (min 

£300.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

15% of cost (min 

£300.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost 

Between £5001 - £10000)

10% of cost (min 

£700.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

10% of cost (min 

£700.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

BUILDING CONTROL

Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost over 

£10000)

5% of cost (min 

£1500.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

5% of cost (min 

£1500.00) + 

£230.00 out of 

hours charge)

See above

P
age 95



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

FM Ogden Room Hire - Evening £58.00 £58.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Saturday £73.00 £73.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Day £52.50 £52.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Evening £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Saturday £79.00 £79.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Saturday £126.40 £126.40 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Sunday £139.20 £139.20 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Day £110.25 £110.25 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Evening £132.30 £132.30 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Saturday £165.90 £165.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B & C - Sunday £182.70 £182.70 £0.00 0.00%

FM Greenbooth A - Day £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Greenbooth A - Evening £47.00 £47.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Greenbooth B - Day £53.00 £53.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Greenbooth B - Evening £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Roch - Day £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Roch - Evening £47.00 £47.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Watergrove - Day £27.00 £27.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Watergrove - Evening £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Piethorne - Day £27.00 £27.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Piethorne - Evening £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Beal - Day £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Beal - Evening £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Irk - Day £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Irk - Evening £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Working Lunch Buffet £5.20 £5.20 £0.00 0.00%

FM 6-item Buffet £6.70 £6.70 £0.00 0.00%

FM 7-item Buffet £9.40 £9.40 £0.00 0.00%

FM 9-item Buffet £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R0972F and R0973F Flipchart Paper and Pens £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM A4 Pad of paper and pen £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Bronze BYOB Items £1.90 £1.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM Silver BYOB Items £2.20 £2.20 £0.00 0.00%

FM Gold BYOB Items £2.70 £2.70 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 96



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

FM Standard Hot Supper £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Premium Hot Supper £9.50 £9.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Platinum Wedding Package 2019 £6,499.00 £6,499.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Gold Wedding Package 2019 £5,249.00 £5,249.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Silver Wedding Package 2019 £3,999.00 £3,999.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Bronze Wedding Package 2019 £1,149.00 £1,149.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R0979F Organ Practise £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1018F Tea Dance £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Public Full Tour (Adults) £7.50 £7.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Public Full Tour (Children) £3.80 £3.80 £0.00 0.00%

FM Public Short Tour (Adults) £4.50 £4.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Public Short Tour (Children) £2.30 £2.30 £0.00 0.00%

FM Private Full Tour (Adults) £11.00 £11.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Private Full Tour (Children) £7.00 £7.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Private Short Tour (Adults) £7.00 £7.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Private Short Tour (Children) £3.50 £3.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1074F School Tours £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1796 School Tours (RMBC Schools) £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Day £47.00 £47.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Ogden Room Hire - Sunday £82.00 £82.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Sunday £87.00 £87.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Day £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Evening £100.80 £100.80 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - per hour £52.50 £52.50 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - full day £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - per hour £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - full day £538.00 £538.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - per hour £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - full day £480.00 £480.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - per hour £60.00 £60.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - full day £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - per hour £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - full day £640.00 £640.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - per hour £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - full day £576.00 £576.00 £0.00 0.00%

R1071F

R1076F

P
age 97



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

FM Great Hall - per hour £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - full day £1,120.00 £1,120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM All Accommodation (Mon-Fri) £2,500.00 £2,500.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R0152 All Accommodation (Saturday) £3,000.00 £3,000.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1056 All Accommodation (Sunday) £3,500.00 £3,500.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1055F Non-refundable Deposit £500.00 £500.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1795 Refundable Deposit (Bond) £500.00 £500.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R0901 Bar Licence Extension (Until Midnight) £250.00 £250.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1072F Afternoon Tea (with tour) £9.90 £9.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM Champagne Afternoon Tea (with tour) £19.90 £19.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM R1073F 2-Course Lunch (with tour) £11.90 £11.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM Danish Pastry Selection £1.90 £1.90 £0.00 0.00%

FM Platinum Wedding Package 2020 £6,999.00 £6,999.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Gold Wedding Package 2020 £5,749.00 £5,749.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Silver Wedding Package 2020 £4,499.00 £4,499.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Bronze Wedding Package 2020 £1,249.00 £1,249.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Weekend rate per hour £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Weekday evening rate per hour £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 -  Weekday evening per hour £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 -  Weekend rate per hour £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - weekend rate per hour £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - weekday evening rate per hour £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - weekend rate per hour £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - weekday evening rate per hour £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - weekend rate per hour £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - weekday evening rate per hour £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - weekend rate per hour £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception Room - weekday evening rate per hour £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - weekend rate per hour £350.00 £350.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - weekday evening rate per hour £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Half Day £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 or 2 - Full Week £1,470.00 £1,470.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - Half Day £302.00 £302.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 1 and 2 - Full Week £2,352.00 £2,352.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 3 - Half Day £270.00 £270.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 98



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21

Appendix 1 - Facilities Management

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

FM Committee Room 3 - Full Week £2,100.00 £2,100.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - Half Day £216.00 £216.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Committee Room 4 - Full Week £1,680.00 £1,680.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - Half Day £360.00 £360.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Council Chamber - Full Week £2,800.00 £2,800.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception room - Half Day £324.00 £324.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Reception room - Full Week £2,520.00 £2,520.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - Half Day £630.00 £630.00 £0.00 0.00%

FM Great Hall - Full Week £4,900.00 £4,900.00 £0.00 0.00%

P
age 99



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Adult Care

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase Notes

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources less than £5,000 £588.00 £588.00 £0.00 0.00%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £588.00 £647.00 £59.00 10.03%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources over £10,000 £588.00 £706.00 £118.00 20.07%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE Careline £3.10 £3.10 £0.00 0.00% Subject to re-tender

ADULT CARE Support@Home £5.10 £5.10 £0.00 0.00% Subject to re-tender

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources less than £5,000 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £306.00 £337.00 £31.00 10.13%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE

Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 

resources over £10,000 £306.00 £367.00 £61.00 19.93%

Proposal to introduce tiered charge NB these charges 

are plus VAT

ADULT CARE Community re-start utility charge £18.00 N/A

This charge will cease as Service no longer provided in 

this form

ADULT CARE Deputyship - annual management fee - first year £857.00 £857.00 £0.00 0.00% Set by the CoP not discretionary

ADULT CARE Deputyship - annual property management Fee £275.00 £275.00 £0.00 0.00% Set by the CoP not discretionary

ADULT CARE Deputyship - preparation and lodgement of annual report or account £199.00 £199.00 £0.00 0.00% Set by the CoP not discretionary

ADULT CARE Deputyship - annual management fee - subsequent years £597.00 £597.00 £0.00 0.00% Set by the CoP not discretionary

ADULT CARE

Deputyship - work up to the court order appointing a deputy for property 

and affairs £728.00 £728.00 £0.00 0.00% Set by the CoP not discretionary

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Admin Fee (new scheme) £562.00 £600.00 £38.00 6.76% The scheme should be self financing

ADULT CARE Transport (per journey) £4.20 £4.30 £0.10 2.38% Very little income as low usage

ADULT CARE Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Pensionable age. £133.80 TBC

ADULT CARE Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Working age. £86.04 TBC

ADULT CARE

Short term and assessment care (weekly charge) - Aged less than 25 

years. £73.88 TBC

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Interest Rate (old scheme)

3.06% to 6.12% depending 

on age of debt.

3.06% to 6.12% 

depending on age of 

debt. Very little income as low usage

ADULT CARE Deferred Payment Interest Rate (new scheme) 1.45% TBC

ADULT CARE Shared lives (daily living costs) £58.70 TBC

ADULT CARE Shared lives (daily living costs) SU on higher rate £58.70 TBC

Based on a % of average benefits for each age group. 

Therefore if benefits rise income will rise. Benefit 

increases announced Dec / Jan

Based on a % of average benefits for each age group. 

Therefore if benefits rise income will rise. Benefit 

increases announced Dec / Jan

P
age 100



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20

Appendix 1 - Children's Services

Sub-Area Ref Desc
Current Charge

2019/20 (£)

Proposed

Charge

2020/21 (£)

Increase

(£)
% Increase

YOUTH SERVICE R0075 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Other organisations £22.50 £22.50 £0.00 0.00%

YOUTH SERVICE R0076 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Schools £22.40 £22.40 £0.00 0.00%

YOUTH SERVICE R0077 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Other organisations £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

YOUTH SERVICE R0078 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Schools £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00%

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 

AGENCY R0054 Supply Teacher DBS £52.00 £52.00 £0.00 0.00%

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 

AGENCY R0055 Supply Teacher ID £3.70 £3.70 £0.00 0.00%

CHILDRENS CENTRES R1807 Room Hire £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00%

SURESTART R0064 CPD/Welfare Training Autumn £18.00 £18.00 £0.00 0.00%

SURESTART R0065 CPD/Welfare Training non attendance £18.00 £18.00 £0.00 0.00%

SURESTART R0066 CPD/Welfare Training Spring £18.00 £18.00 £0.00 0.00%

SURESTART R0067 CPD/Welfare Training Summer £18.00 £18.00 £0.00 0.00%

SURESTART R1674 Childminder pre-registration Training £13.40 £13.40 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0045 Music Service Termly membership – Individual £30.60 £30.60 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0046 Music Service Termly membership – Family £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0047 15 minute lesson £8.20 £8.20 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0048 20 minute lesson £11.30 £11.30 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0049 30 minute lesson £16.40 £16.40 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0043 60 minute lesson £32.70 £32.70 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R1866 Music Festival entry – Individual £5.10 £5.10 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE Music Festival entry – duets/trios £6.20 £6.20 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R1867 Music Festival entry – large ensemble £11.30 £11.30 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE Exam accompaniment £32.70 £32.70 £0.00 0.00%

MUSIC SERVICE R0037 Ticket sales variable variable

P
age 101



Agenda 
Item

Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 29th October 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Julie Murphy
Public/Private Document Public

Budget Update and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 
2024/25

Executive Summary

1.

2.

To provide an update on the latest budget position for the Council and 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group.

To provide an update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Recommendation

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

Members are requested to: 

Note the updated Revenue Budget position for the Council and Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group.

Consider the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 
2024/25.

Continue to identify savings proposals in order to alleviate ongoing demand 
pressures and to bridge the estimated budget gap identified for future years.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2020/21 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2021/22 to 2022/23. 
The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2020/21 by 11th March 
2020. The Medium Term Financial Strategy provides a key part of the budget 
setting process. 

Page 102

Agenda Item 11



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

Background

The Budget process begins in July with approval, by Cabinet, of the 
assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position and are 
currently being incorporated into Service budgets.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
from Central Government and other changes, including local decisions. The 
updated budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to 
Cabinet in February with recommendations for Budget Council, who will in 
turn set the budget. 

Budget Council 27th February 2019 approved provisional budgets for 2020/21 
and 2021/22. The budget position of the Council is reviewed throughout the 
budget process as more information becomes available. An updated budget 
position was reported to Cabinet in July 2019.

Budget Review Sessions have been held for each of the Council’s Priority 
Areas: People; Place and Prosperity. There have also been sessions 
reviewing Support Services and Fixed Costs and to explore areas where the 
Council can maximise income generation opportunities. Service Directors 
have produce savings proposals, which are considered elsewhere on the 
agenda.

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2019/20 to 2023/24 
was approved at Budget Council 27th February 2019. The MTFS has been 
reviewed and Appendix 1 provides an updated MTFS reflecting current 
budget assumptions. The MTFS for 2020/21 to 2024/25 will be formally 
presented for approval at Budget Council 26th February 2020.

Revenue Budget 2020/21 to 2022/23

This report provides an update on the budget position for the Council and 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group 
(HMRCCG).

The assumptions that underpin the Council’s budget gap have been reviewed 
in line with the latest available information, including the impact of the 
Spending Round 2019, impacting on 2020/21 funding, announced by the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer on 4th September 2019. However, it must be 
highlighted that certainty around the funding announced on 4th September 
will not be gained until the Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21, 
expected to be announced in late 2019.

This has been combined with the latest HMRCCG budget gap to produce an 
overall budget gap for the locality.

Page 103



4.3.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.4

4.4.1

The Capital Programme is reported elsewhere on the agenda. The budget 
gap assumes revenue borrowing costs of £1.4m resulting from 2020/21 
Capital Programme. If additional capital bids are approved that increase the 
level of revenue borrowing costs, the updated budget gap will be reported to 
Members.

Table 1 summarises the current estimated Overall Budget Gap, split between 
the Pooled Fund and Non-pooled Fund budgets:

Table 1 Overall Budget Gap

  

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Pooled Fund 14.754 22.167 23.057

Non Pooled
LA 4.434 4.544 4.855
CCG 3.700 6.400 6.400
Total Non Pooled 8.134 10.944 11.255

Total Budget Gap - July Cabinet 22.888 33.111 34.312

Pooled Fund 
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -0.498 5.008 4.395
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions -5.319 -5.319 -0.744

Non Pooled
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -2.626 -0.574 -0.832
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 0.000 0.000 1.400

Revised Gap

Pooled Fund 8.937 21.856 26.708

Non Pooled
LA 1.808 3.970 4.023
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800
Total Non Pooled 5.508 10.370 11.823

Total Budget Gap 14.445 32.226 38.531

Further detail behind the updated Overall Budget Gap is discussed in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy provided at Appendix 1 to this report.

Savings Programme 2020/21

The Savings Programme for 2020/21 is designed to bridge the budget gap 
for 2020/21, to enable a legally balanced budget to be set by 11th March 
2020, and consider savings which can contribute to the 2021/22 gap. Savings 
proposals are submitted to Cabinet and the Integrated Commissioning Board 

Page 104



4.5 

4.5.1

4.5.2

4.5.3

for approval to consult. Those which require approval by Cabinet are a 
separate agenda item, and are summarised in Table 2.

Table 2 Savings Programme 2020/21
 

Updated Budget Gap

Table 3 shows the Revised Budget Gap after savings proposals. This 
assumes that all savings proposals are approved. The estimated Budget Gap 
is based on the assumptions outlined in the MTFS, including the level of 
Government funding for 2020/21, which is still to be confirmed. 

The savings proposals for 2020/21 currently being considered include a 
number of HMRCCG proposals which are pipeline projects. A one-off 
provision of £2m has been included in the 2020/21 budget to mitigate the 
Council’s potential liability if the savings proposals approved by the 
Integrated Commissioning Board are not achieved. The requirement for this 
provision in 2020/21 and future years will be continue to be reviewed 
throughout the budget process. 

Once more information is available, in particular the Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21, the budget assumptions will be reviewed. Any 
remaining 2020/21 budget gap will be funded from one off resources in order 
to produce a balanced budget for 2020/21.

Page 105



4.5.4

4.5.5

Table 3 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

  

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap before Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund 8.937 21.856 26.708

Non Pooled
Local Authority 1.808 3.970 4.023
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800

5.508 10.370 11.823

Total Budget Gap 14.445 32.226 38.531

Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund -11.324 -12.262 -12.262

Non Pooled
Local Authority -2.682 -2.907 -3.938
CCG 0.000 0.000 0.000

-2.682 -2.907 -3.938

Total Savings Proposals -14.006 -15.169 -16.200

Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund -2.387 9.594 14.446

Non Pooled
Local Authority -0.874 1.063 0.085
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800

2.826 7.463 7.885

Total Budget Gap 0.439 17.057 22.331

There is a need identify further saving proposals in the light of the significant 
budget gap identified for 2021/22 and 2022/23 and the continued demand 
pressures in relation to Children’s Services, Adult Care, and CCG Mental 
Health and Acute Services.

The savings proposals put forward by the CCG are currently shown against 
the Pooled Fund Gap. Work is ongoing to align the savings to the Pooled and 
the CCG Non Pooled budget gaps. 

Page 106



4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.7

4.7.1

Education & Schools Funding
 

In the Spending Round 2019 the Chancellor announced a 3 year resource 
settlement for schools, including that:

 Every secondary school will receive a minimum of £5,000 per pupil 
next year, with every primary school getting a minimum of £4,000 
from 2021/22.

 There will be £700 million extra funding for children with Special 
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in 2020/21.

Individual authorities’ funding allocations for 2020/21 have not yet been 
announced.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number 
of alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report and in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy provided at Appendix 1 to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2

6.2.1

Risk Implications 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation 
of these assumptions will not be received until November/December this 
year. 

There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. These are discussed 
in the Medium Term Financial Strategy provided at Appendix 1 to this report.

The key assumptions are reviewed and updated throughout the year based 
upon latest information available.

Legal Implications

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue 

Page 107



expenditure; an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the 
difference between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be 
sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced 
budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with 
adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'.
 
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed 
by these regulations. 

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year.

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Consultation

7.1 Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
preparation process. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Julie Murphy
julie.murphy2@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925174

Page 108

mailto:julie.murphy2@rochdale.gov.uk


Medium Term 
Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

Page 109



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control
Document Title:

Summary

Publication Date October 2019

Related Legislation / Applicable 
Section of Legislation

Related Policies, Strategies, 
Guideline Documents

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, Treasury Management , 
Asset Strategy, Corporate Plan, Place Plan

Replaces February 2019 MTFS

Joint Strategy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint

Strategy Owner (Name/Position) Julie Murphy, Chief Finance Officer 

Strategy Author (Name/Position) Chris Mills, Senior Corporate Accountant

Applies to

Review of Strategy

Last Review Date October 2019 

Review undertaken by Chris Mills

Next Review Date February 2020

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.

Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Page 110



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Introduction

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets out the Council’s 
commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally and that represent good 
value for money within the overall resources available to it. 

The MTFS is what links our Council’s vision and priorities with forecasted resources and budgets 
and shows how our Council’s finances will be structured and managed to ensure that this fits with, 
and supports, the priorities of our Council and its partners. 

The strategy considers: 

 International and national economic influences on our Council; 
 The influence of Central Government policy and strategy;
 Local factors which influence policy within our Council; 
 Key Council policy areas. 

The strategy brings together the key issues affecting the:

 Revenue Budget;
 Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy and Capital Programme; 
 Treasury Management Strategy. 

A key part of the strategy is to highlight the budget issues that will need to be addressed by our 
Council over the coming financial years, by forecasting the level of available resources from all 
sources and budget pressures relating to both capital and revenue spending. 

Page 111



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 3

CONTENTS

Part Section Page

Part 1 Key Objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 4

Part 2 The Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy 6
 Financial Strategy 6
 Overall Economic Forecasts 6
 Regional Influences 7
 Resources Received by the Council 8
 Budget Pressures 19
 Forecast Gap Between Resources and Expenditure 23

Part 3 How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge? 26
 Revenue Budget Plan 26
 Savings Programme 31
 Forecast Budget Gap after Savings Proposals 32
 Balances and Reserves Strategy 34
 Commercial property investment strategy 36

Part 4 The Council’s Capital Programme 37

Part 5 Strategies Linked to the Medium Term Financial Strategy 39
 Treasury Management Strategy
 Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy
 Asset Management Strategy

Page 112



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 4

Part 1: Key Objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Rochdale is the birthplace of co-operation, and the Council is committed to retaining this 
distinction by working with partners, local people and communities to improve the lives of local 
people. Our vision is to be a Council which builds success and prosperity with our citizens and 
partners, while protecting vulnerable people.

2. Each year there is a legal requirement to prepare an annual budget and set the Council Tax for 
the borough of Rochdale. Alongside the annual budget our Council reviews the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) to take into account the latest financial forecasts for future levels of 
resources for the next 5 years and aligns these to service plans. The strategy sets the financial 
context for how the Council’s resources are received and allocated through the budget setting 
over a rolling five year timeframe, for this Strategy that is from 2020/21 to 2024/25. 

The MTFS is aligned to the Borough’s Place Plan and the Council’s Corporate Plan to ensure that 
our resources are directed to delivering the vision and priorities for the Borough. The Council’s 
Corporate Plan is currently being reviewed.

3. The key Corporate Plan priorities which the MTFS supports are shown below.

Our vision : to be a  Council which builds 
success and prosperity with our citizens and 
partners, while protecting vulnerable people

Three key drivers of the Corporate Plan over the next 3 years:
                            People       -    Improving education
                            Place         -    Our local environment
                            Prosperity  -    Our local economy

Improving performance is our fourth priority – Focusing on managing our 
resources effectively to achieve our ambitions – supported by the MTFS

4. Key objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The key objectives of the MTFS are as follows:

 To ensure that effective financial planning and management contributes to the Council 
achieving the priorities in the Corporate Plan;

 To direct resources to the Council's priorities to support the achievement of the Corporate 
Plan;

 To maximise the income from Council Tax and Business Rates revenue to support the 
priorities of the council;

 To maximise income from commercial and regeneration opportunities adding value to the 
economy.

 To analyse budget performance to assess the effectiveness of resource allocation.

Page 113



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 5

 To continue to improve value for money - managing people and our money more efficiently, 
streamlining processes and systems, getting better value from commissioning and 
procurement, whilst seeking to minimise the impact of budget savings on priority services. 

 To ensure the Council's financial standing is prudent, robust, stable and sustainable.

5. Local authorities have faced unprecedented reductions in Government funding since the 
Government Spending Review 2010. Coupled with rising costs and increased demand for 
services by local residents this has meant that our Council has had to make significant budget 
savings. Over the last ten years our Council has approved £180m of ongoing savings to bridge 
the gap between falling resources, rising costs and increasing local demands. This has led to 
transformations and changes within our Council as we look to meet the changing needs of local 
residents within the funds we have available.

6. The Council is now working with partners to transform services to enable efficiencies and value 
for money to be achieved by reducing duplication through the integration of services, such as 
health and social care. The Council is also seeking to maximise income from commercial and 
regeneration opportunities adding value to the economy.  

7. Integration of Health & Social Care

Greater Manchester is moving towards taking full control and responsibility of the £6bn Health 
& Social Care Budget with the creation of its own sustainable Health & Social Care system by 
2021. The Council and local health partners have developed a Locality Plan to support the 
regional delivery of the integration of health and social care, public health and prevention. 
Integration is key to protecting social care and providing services to people in the Community. 
Without investment in social care the financial pressure within health will not be sustainable and 
may lead to a full system failure. It is felt that the pooling of resources across the locality will 
provide more opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale, reduce duplication 
and streamline processes. 

The Local Authority created a formal pooled budget arrangement from 1st April 2018 for health 
and social care. The MTFS reports on the total budget which includes the Pooled Fund, which 
includes the Adult Social Care, Public Health, and elements of Children’s Services and Non-
Pooled Fund including elements of Children Services, Economy, Neighbourhoods and 
Resources.

Page 114



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 6

Part 2: The Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy

1. Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is designed to ensure that the Council’s resources 
are prioritised to meet the needs of our residents; the Council is able to operate as a going 
concern; and is able to set a balanced budget each year. The MTFS ensures that:

 The Council maintains a prudent approach in regard to our finances over 5 years of the 
MTFS;

 The savings programme focuses on the achievement of ongoing savings, but recognises the 
value of one off savings to support both the implementation of savings and one off 
investment.

In compiling the MTFS our Council has considered a number of factors which influence the 
resources and expenditure for the Council. These have been reviewed and take into 
consideration international, national, regional and local issues. These have been examined to 
ensure that the MTFS reflects the most up to date financial position for the Council.

2. Factors Influencing the Medium Term Financial Strategy   

Local authority funding is subject to both national and international influences, which can have 
a significant impact on the level of services to be provided and our Council’s ability to provide 
them. This section will briefly outline some of the key economic issues affecting our Council’s 
forecasts over the next few years.

2.1 Overall Economic Forecasts and Influences

The Chancellor presented his Spring Statement 2019 on 13th March 2019. The Statement was 
based around latest projections from the Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR), which could 
be subject to significant revision once greater certainty emerged around the future relationship 
with the European Union.

2.1.1 Key Economic Data

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) – the OBR forecast of UK economic growth for 2019/20 has 
been reduced by 0.4% but has increased by 0.1% in the following three years.

Percentage change 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Spring Statement 1.4% 1.2% 1.5% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6%
Autumn Budget 2018 1.4% 1.6% 1.4% 1.5% 1.5% 1.6%

Estimates of GDP underpin policy on Departmental Spending, including that on local 
government.

Page 115



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 7

Inflation – forecasts of Consumer Prices Inflation (CPI) show little change for future years, with 
a slight increase of 0.1% in 2019/20, but slight decreases of between 0.1% and 0.2% in the rates 
forecast for the subsequent three years.
 

Percentage change 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Spring Update 2019 2.3% 2.0% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Autumn Budget 2018 2.5% 1.9% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.0%

Consumer Price Inflation is Governments preferred measure of likely prices rises.

Public Sector Net Borrowing (PSNB) – is forecast to reduce at a steeper rate than the previous 
forecast.

£ Billion 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Spring Update 2019 £22.8bn £29.3bn £21.2bn £26.0bn £17.6bn £13.5bn
Autumn Budget 2018 £25.5bn £31.8bn £26.7bn £23.8bn £20.8bn £19.8bn

One of Government’s key objective is to reduce PSNB.

2.1.2   International and National Issues

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced in his one-year Spending Round 2019 on 4th 
September that ‘we are turning the page on austerity and beginning a new decade of renewal’.

Local Government Resource Departmental Expenditure Limits (DEL) (excluding depreciation) 
will increase from £6.1bn in 2019/20 to £8.6bn in 2020/21. The Government has indicated that 
it projects that Local Authorities’ Core Spending Power (CSP) will increase by £2.9bn in 2020/21, 
a real terms increase of 4.3% (i.e. a cash increase of 6.3%).

2.2  Regional Influences

2.2.1 Devolution General

The Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement was signed with the Government in November 
20141 which brings both the decision making powers and greater control of financial budgets far 
closer to the people of Greater Manchester. This gives them and their local representatives 
control over decisions which have until now been taken at a national or regional level by 
providing the legal framework for the Greater Manchester Combined Authority to assume 
responsibilities currently performed and delivered by other public bodies.

The elected Mayor has now taken up post and from 2018/19 a GM Combined Authority Budget 
has been operating, including being the precept and levy authority for: GM Police & Crime 
Commissioner, GM Fire & Rescue Authority and levy authorities: GM Waste Disposal Authority 
and GM Passenger Transport Executive. 

1 Cities and Local Government Devolution Act.

Page 116



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 8

2.2.2   Health and Social Care Devolution 

The 10 Local Authorities in Greater Manchester, all Greater Manchester Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) and NHS England (NHSE) have signed a Memorandum of Understanding as 
part of Greater Manchester moving towards taking full control and responsibility of the £6bn 
Health & Social Care Budget and the creation of its own sustainable Health & Social Care system 
by 2021. To deliver the devolved health and social care initiative, a Greater Manchester Strategic 
Plan has been developed and each local area sets out a Locality plan to support this Strategic 
Plan focussing on the integration of health, social care and public health/prevention. 

The integration of services is key to improving the quality of care and outcomes for people within 
the funding available. It is felt that the pooling of resources across the locality will provide more 
opportunities to explore value for money, economies of scale, reduce duplication and streamline 
processes. 

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations including the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, the Council, Better Care Funds and GM level resources to invest in 
transformation of service delivery (known as Transformation Funding). The Council created a 
formal pooled budget arrangement from 1st April 2018 for health and social care. 

2.3 Resources Received by the Council

2.3.1 The anticipated resources to be received by the Council are included in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. The resource forecasts are based on a number of assumptions, which are 
detailed in the following sections.

Table 1 summarises the Estimated Resources received by the Council.

Page 117



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 9

Table 1 Estimated Resources received by the Council

 

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
£m £m £m £m £m

Government Grants
Business Rates Top-up Grant 36.3 34.2 30.7 26.7 22.8
New Homes Bonus 2.1 2.0 2.2 2.2 1.8
Adult Social Care Support Grant 6.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Improved Better Care Fund 11.9 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8
Business Rates S31 Grant 9.9 10.1 10.3 10.5 10.7
Other General Grants 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

66.8 58.7 55.6 51.7 47.7

Locally Generated Income
Council  Tax 91.6 94.1 96.7 99.5 102.3
Business Rates 63.3 65.7 67.9 69.8 71.8

154.9 159.8 164.7 169.3 174.1

Total Resources 221.6 218.4 220.2 221.0 221.8

% Resources Locally Generated 70% 73% 75% 77% 79%

Page 118



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 10

Government Funding

2.3.3 Spending Round 2019

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced his Spending Round 2020/21 on 4th September 
2019. The Spending Round covers Government departments’ day-to-day spending for 
2020/2021. The key announcements were:

 A £13.8bn increase in day to day spending across government departments. Each 
department will receive an increase at least in line with inflation.

 £2bn extra for Brexit delivery.
 A 6.3% increase for the Home Office, including £750m for 20,000 extra police officers.
 A £6.2bn increase in NHS day to day spending, plus £2bn for capital spending. The total 

NHS England budget will increase from £123.7bn to £129.9bn. 
 Councils will have access to a further £1.5bn for social care – £1bn through a new grant 

and £500m through a 2% adult social care precept.
 Existing social care funding (Improved Better Care Fund, the Winter Pressures funding 

and the Social Care grant) will continue in 2020/21.
 Local Government’s business rate baseline funding levels will also increase in line with 

inflation.
 Core settlement funding (Baseline Funding and Revenue Support Grant) will increase by 

£300m (2%).
 Local authorities will receive additional resources through a real terms increase in the 

Public Health Grant and through the NHS contribution to adult social care through the 
Better Care Fund, which will increase by 3.4% in real terms, in line with the overall NHS 
long-term settlement.

 The largest increase in local government spending power since 2010, increased from 
£46.2bn in 2019/20 to £49.1bn in 2020/21.

 A 13% increase in homelessness funding, an increase of £54m.
 A 3 year resource settlement for schools, including £700m extra for children with Special 

Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in 2020/21.

The estimated funding resulting from the Spending Round announcements has been reflected 
in the MFTS and is discussed in the following sections. Government funding for 2020/21 will be 
confirmed in the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020-21, expected in late 2019. 

2.3.4 Local Government Funding Reforms 

2019/20 was the last year of the current Government Spending Review period and of the four-
year funding settlement for local government. There were multiple reforms scheduled for 
2020/21 that will have a significant impact on local authority funding. These have now been 
delayed until 2021/22. 

Spending Review 2020
In 2020 a full Spending Review will be held, reviewing public spending in the round and setting 
three-year budgets.

Page 119



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 11

Fair Funding Review
The Fair Funding Review will re-assess the relative needs and relative resources of local 
authorities. This will determine the methodology for the distribution of the funding allocated for 
local government to individual authorities from 2021/22.

Baseline Reset
The Business Rates retention system is due to be reset for 2021/22. The reset will establish new 
Baseline Funding Levels, Business Rates Baselines and Top-ups/Tariffs for each local authority.  

Top-ups/Tariffs will be reset based on:
 The amount of funding to be distributed following the Spending Review.
 The new needs assessment resulting from the Fair Funding Review.
 Estimates of individual local authority’s Business Rates income.

Business Rate Retention 
The Government announced in the Autumn Budget 2017 that local authorities will move to a 
system of 75% Business Rates Retention from 2020/21. However, this has now been delayed 
until 2021/22. The Greater Manchester 100% retention pilot will continue in 2020/21, but it is 
unclear whether this will continue from 2021/22 onwards.

Council Tax
The Government’s future strategy for Council Tax increases will also be a key issue. The 
Government will consult on whether to enable authorities to charge an additional Adult Social 
Care precept in 2020/21, and on the referendum limit for general Council Tax. The Government’s 
policy on referendum limits from 2021/22 onwards is not yet known. 

Other funding streams 
The treatment of a number of funding streams currently within the Core Spending Power is 
unclear pending the reforms to local government finance: Revenue Support Grant (including 
Local Council Tax Support funding); Public Health Grant; Improved Better Care Fund; additional 
Social Care funding and New Homes Bonus. 

The potential impact of the reforms to local government funding will continually be reviewed as 
the consultation papers are released to update the potential financial risks and assumptions for 
the MTFS.

2.3.5   Baseline Funding Level 

An authorities’ Baseline Funding Level is made up of its Business Rates Baseline and Business 
Rates Top-up grant. The Spending Round confirmed that Baseline Funding Levels would be 
uprated nationally by £300m, which equates to 2%, in line with inflation.

Business Rates Top-up Grant
Some local authorities collect and retain a lot more Business Rates than others, so the Business 
Rates retention scheme includes a system of Top-ups and Tariffs. Whether a local authority is 
a Tariff or a Top-up authority is determined by comparing the amount of funding required by an 

Page 120



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 12

authority via the Business Rates retention system (its Baseline Funding Level) and the amount 
it can raise in Business Rates locally (its Business Rate Baseline). 

If an authority’s Business Rate Baseline is less than its Baseline Funding Level, it receives a 
Top-up grant from the Government. If an authority’s Business Rate Baseline is greater than its 
Baseline Funding Level it pays a Tariff to the government.

The Council is part of the Greater Manchester pilot to retain 100% of Business Rates, which will 
continue until 2020/21. In return Greater Manchester has forgone Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
and the Public Health Grant in lieu of the retained Business Rates. Authorities’ Tariffs and Top-
ups are adjusted to ensure these changes are “without detriment” to individual authorities.

From 2021/22 it is proposed that councils will retain 75% of their Business Rates income, 
incorporating Revenue Support Grant, Public Health Grant and other grants, with suitable 
transitional arrangements. It is unclear whether pilot authorities will move to 75% retention in 
2021/22, or continue with 100% retention.

It is difficult to forecast the longer-term impact on the Council’s funding of the move to 75% 
business rates retention and the impact of funding reforms from 2021/22. The following 
assumptions have been included in the MTFS when forecasting Business Rates top-up for future 
years.

Revenue Support Grant and Public Health Grant
Under the 100% retention pilot Revenue Support Grant and Public Health Grant are not received 
directly, but form part of the calculation of the Business Rates Top-up. The Spending Round 
confirms that Revenue Support Grant and Public Health Grant will increase in line with inflation 
in 2020/21. It is assumed that they will reduce in future years in line with previous reductions. 

Business Rates Baseline is assumed to increase in line with inflation. Table 2 summarises the 
estimated Baseline Funding Level for the MTFS period.

Table 2 Estimated Baseline Funding Level

Business 
Rates 

Baseline

Business 
Rates 

Top-up
Total

Business 
Rates 

Baseline

Business 
Rates 

Top-up
Total

£m £m £m % % %
2019/20 58.012 35.598 93.610
2020/21 59.172 36.308 95.480 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
2021/22 60.356 34.213 94.569 2.0% -5.8% -1.0%
2022/23 61.563 30.746 92.309 2.0% -10.1% -2.4%
2023/24 62.794 26.651 89.445 2.0% -13.3% -3.1%
2024/25 64.050 22.818 86.868 2.0% -14.4% -2.9%

Change %Baseline Funding Level

Page 121



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 13

2.3.6 Additional Funding for Social Care

The Spending Round confirmed that all existing grants to support social care will continue in 
2020/21, in total worth £2.5bn (Improved Better Care Fund £1.837bn, Winter Pressures 
£0.240bn, Social Care grant £0.410bn).

The Spending Round also provided a further £1bn funding for Social Care in 2020/21 – both for 
children and adults.  Allocations for individual authorities have yet to be confirmed. Based on 
the methodology used to allocate the 2019/20 additional social care funding, Rochdale’s 
allocation will be £4.6m. Actual allocations will be confirmed in the Local Government Finance 
settlement 2020/21.

Table 3 summarises the estimated Government funding for Social Care for 2020/21.

Table 3 Social Care Funding - Summary

2020-21
£m

Improved Better Care Fund 10.809
Winter Pressures 1.108
Social Care Funding - continuation of existing funding 1.894
Social Care Funding - 2019 Spending Round 4.618

18.429

2.3.8 New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives and rewards for Local 
Authorities who have a net increase in new homes and empty properties brought back into use 
in their areas. The scheme commenced in April 2011, and was revised in 2017/18:

 NHB is paid for 4 years. 
 The NHB calculation includes a baseline for housing growth, currently set as 0.4% of the 

previous year’s dwelling stock (total stock less long-term empty properties). Housing 
growth below this level in each authority will not receive NHB allocations. 

The estimated NHB for 2020/21 and future years is based on the current scheme, however, the 
Government has yet to confirm whether the NHB scheme will continue in its current form.

2.3.9 Education & Schools Funding
 
In the Spending Round 2019 the Chancellor announced a 3 year resource settlement for 
schools, including:

 Investment of over £14 billion in primary and secondary education between now and 
2022/23.

 The funding package for 5-16 schools includes £2.6 billion for 2020/21, £4.8 billion for 

Page 122



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 14

21/22, and £7.1 billion for 22/23 compared to 19/20. 
 Every secondary school will receive a minimum of £5,000 per pupil next year, with every 

primary school getting a minimum of £4,000 from 2021/22.
 £700 million extra for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 

in 2020/21.

Individual authorities’ funding allocations have not yet been announced.

In 2019/20 there is a £3.365m pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG) within the High 
Needs block. The pressure is in relation to a continued rise in numbers of children with education 
health care plans and increasing numbers of children attending independent schools which is a 
high cost provision. The growth in numbers is a national trend and the current DSG pressure 
equates to 2% of the DSG 2019/20 allocation which will put the DSG reserve into a deficit 
position and therefore will result in Rochdale Council being required to submit a 3 year recovery 
plan to the Department for Education at the end of the financial year to bring the reserve back 
into a surplus position. A recovery plan to bring the balance to less than a £2m deficit would 
alleviate the need for Department of Education intervention.

Locally Generated Income

2.3.10 Business Rates

Our Business Rates tax base represents the value of Business Rates income we estimate will 
be collected from businesses. Each Business Rates tax payer account has a rateable valuation 
provided by the Valuation Office Agency, multiplied by a business rates multiplier which 
increases each year and is set by the Government.

The Council’s estimated share of Business Rates income equates to £63.3m in 2020/21, after 
applying discounts such as charitable relief, empty property relief and small business rates relief.

Local authorities are fully compensated for the loss of income as a result of any reliefs set by 
the Government through Section 31 grants.

For Business Rates income, the Council’s MTFS includes a 2% rise for future years, in line with 
CPI forecasts. Estimated rateable value growth is also built into the Business Rates income 
budget.

Business Rates Pooling
The ten Greater Manchester authorities are part of the GM Business Rates Pool which also 
incorporates Cheshire East and Cheshire West and Chester local authorities.

The  purpose  of  pooling  Business Rates  across  the individual  authorities  is  not  intended  
to  alter  individual  authorities income levels,  but to retain any levy that might be payable by 
some of the authorities to  Central Government. Any growth retained, after applying the agreed 
allocation to the levy authorities, would be used for investment within Greater Manchester and 
other non-Greater Manchester authorities involved in the pool.

Page 123



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 15

Business Rates Appeals
The Government amended the Business Rates Appeals system with effect from 1st April 2017, 
introducing a three-stage approach to Business Rates Appeals: Check, Challenge, Appeal. To 
date there has been little information available on the level of appeals via the new system and 
this remains an area of uncertainty. As a consequence of this new approach the Council has 
seen an increase in the number of changes to its Business Rates lists. This is making it very 
difficult to identify changes in rateable values of businesses. 

Business Rate 100% Retention
The Council will continue to be part of the Greater Manchester 100% Business Retention Pilot 
in 2020/21. From 2021/22 the Government is proposing that councils will retain 75% of their 
business rates income. It is unclear whether pilot authorities will move to 75% retention in 
2021/22, or continue with 100% retention.

Table 4 shows the estimated for Business Rates Income and Business Rates Top-up Grant (see 
Section 2.3.5). 

Table 4 Estimated Business Rates Income and Top-up Grant 

2.3.11 Council Tax

Council Tax is charged by local authorities on residential properties. The Valuation Office 
Agency decides the correct band based on the value of your property at 1 April 1991. Local 
authorities set the charge based on a Band D property each year. 

The Council has to balance the needs of service users, who are often some of the most 
vulnerable people in our borough, and the burden of the Council Tax on local Council Tax 
payers. With the Government placing severe reductions in the level of general grant support, 
the burden of financing increasing service demand falls primarily upon the level of Council Tax.

Page 124



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 16

For planning purposes only the following assumptions have been made in relation to the 2020/21 
Council Tax:

 An increase of 1.99% for 2020/21 for general purposes, based on the assumptions used 
by the Government in the Spending Round 2019. 

 A 2% increase in the Adult Social Care Precept. The Government announced in the 
Spending Round 2019 that it would consult on enabling councils to raise a 2% Adult 
Social Care Precept.

 A total increase of 3.99% in the Rochdale BC element of 2020/21 Council Tax, the same 
total increase as for 2019/20.

 For future years a 1.99% increase in General Council Tax has been assumed, with no 
further Adult Social Care Precept assumed.

Table 5 shows the Band D Council Tax levels assumed in the MTFS for planning purposes only.

Table 5 Band D Council Tax 

 

General 
ASC 

Precept
Total 

Increase
Band D

% % % £
2019-20 2.99% 1.00% 3.99% £1,582.14
2020-21 1.99% 2.00% 3.99% £1,645.27
2021-22 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,678.01
2022-23 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,711.40
2023-24 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,745.46
2024-25 1.99% 0.00% 1.99% £1,780.19

Council Tax Band D

 

Council Tax Base
The Council Tax base for 2019/20 of 55,176 was approved by Council on 12th December 2018. 
The Council Tax base represents the number of Band D equivalent properties that we collect 
Council Tax from. For planning purposes the Council Tax Base for 2020/21 is estimated at 
55,651. 

The estimated increase in the 2020/21 Council Tax base of 475 is a result of: an estimated 
increase in the number of properties, net of estimated exemptions and discounts (including the 
Local Council Tax Support scheme) and the estimated collection rate of 97.5%. The 2020/21 
Council Tax base will be reviewed before formal approval at Council 11th December 2019.

The more Band D equivalent properties the Council has allows the local authority to generate 
more income for the Council from Council Tax.  Properties valued at Band A generate less 
income for the Council as the charge is 70% of the charge for a band D property. 

Page 125



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 17

In Rochdale 54% of properties are in Band A and 71% are Band A or B. The housing stock in 
the borough has a direct impact on the level of income the Council can raise from Council Tax. 
The average for Local Authorities in England is a housing stock with 24% properties in Band A 
and 44% in Band A or B2. Table 6 compares the breakdown properties by Council Tax band for 
Rochdale with the national picture.

Table 6 Council Tax - % of bands in each category for Rochdale compared to the national 
average

Table 7 shows the estimated Council Tax income our Council is estimated to receive in 2020/21 
as £91.6m (£83.6m General Council Tax and £8.0m Adult Social Care precept) rising to 
£102.4m (£94.1m General Council Tax and £8.3m Adult Social Care precept) in 2024/25. 

2 Council Tax Base Return October 2018

Page 126



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 18

Table 7 Estimated Council Tax Income 2020/21 – 2024/25 

 

2.4 Budget Pressures 

2.4.1 Regional Budget Pressures

Greater Manchester Transport Levy
The budget assumes a 1% increase in the underlying Passenger Transport Levy for 2020/21 
and in future years. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject to consideration/agreement 
as a consequence of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s budget setting process in 
2020/21 and subsequent years.

Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Levy
The Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across Greater Manchester which takes 
account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough did not increase recycling at the same level as 
other GM Authorities, there would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the 
Council thus leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest projections provided 
by Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). The Waste Disposal levy is estimated for 
planning purposes to increase by 1.6% in 2020/21, 1.6% in 2021/22 and 0% in future years.  
The Waste Disposal Levy will be subject to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s budget setting process in 2020/21 and subsequent 
years.

Greater Manchester Combined Authority Initiatives
Funding for any GMCA initiatives that have financial implications for individual authorities will be 
considered on a case by case basis.

Page 127



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 19

Manchester Airport Group 
The Council holds 3.22% of the issued share capital in the Manchester Airport Group. An 
additional £3m per annum has been assumed, increasing the overall budget income from the 
investment in Manchester Airport Group to £5.6m.

2.4.2 Local Budget Pressures

Demographics Pressures

Some of the main financial challenges affecting how we balance our budget relate to the 
changing profile of our Council’s residents. These include:

Population Projections impacting on Children’s Services

1. Projected population increase for 0-19 year olds from 2018 to 2023 based on the Office 
for National Statistics.

Children Population 2018 2023 % Movement
0 to 9 year old 30,200 29,400 -2.6%
10 to 19 years old 26,600 28,900 8.6%
Total 56,800 58,300 2.5%

Within this the population for 0-9 year olds decreases by 2.6% whilst the 10-19 range 
increases by 8.6%.

2. Implications for Children’s Social Care
Currently Rochdale has 56,800 children of which 1% are looked after by the Local 
Authority. Based on future population growth this would equate to an additional 13 children 
being cared for by the Local Authority at the end of the 5 year period. 

However, in line with a national trend, the numbers of Cared for Children and their 
complexities are increasing due to deprivation, troubled families, special education needs 
and families entering the borough e.g. asylum seekers.  The Service are currently 
projecting a budget pressure of around £6.6m, mainly on children’s placements.  A 
Financial Strategy outlining the potential financial position and options for how this can be 
managed over a 5 year period will be reported to Cabinet in October 2019.  This includes 
investment in both staffing and a number of Innovations to support children remaining with 
their parents or local Foster Carers.
At the heart of the strategy is the development of a number of innovations to both reduce 
the number of children in care and realise savings.  These are:

 Family Services Model – partnership working with other agencies (police, health and 
the voluntary sector) to work more closely together for early intervention of children 
at risk of entering care.  This strategy relies upon external funding from other 
agencies and the Troubled Families Grant.  

Page 128



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 20

 Achieving Change Together – working differently with other agencies to provide 
intensive support to vulnerable teenagers. 

 Strengthening families – intensive pre-birth support with mothers of repeat 
pregnancies whose children are taken into care.

 No Wrong Door – intensive support to teenagers in Placements with complex issues 
to enable them to return to their parents.

 
Should the delivery of these innovations not be successful the budget pressure faced by 
Children’s Services could increase significantly.

3. Implications for Early Help & Schools
As the number of pupils increases over the next 3-4 years there is a requirement to build 
2 new secondary schools in the Borough.  In addition, due to increasing numbers of 
children with special educational needs, especially autism, there is a need for a new special 
school catering for this provision.  Additional funding for 2 new secondary and 1 new 
special school has been approved by the DfE.  The revenue costs of running the schools 
will be funded by Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).

The increasing numbers of children with special educational needs has led to pressures in 
DSG funding for High Needs pupils.  Work is on-going to mitigate these future pressures.

Population Projections impacting on Adult Services

Projected population increase for 20 plus from 2018 to 2023 based on the Office for 
National Statistics is as follows:-

The number of people in the 20-64 age range is forecast to reduce in the period above, 
however there is a growing number of service users in the 20 to 64 age bracket who are 
presenting with complex social and health care issues. 

Short and Long Term Service Projections

The forecast number of service users for 2018/19 up to 2020/21 is detailed as follows:

Adult Population 2018 2023 % 
Movement

20 to 64 year old 125,100 124,500 -0.7%
65 to 84 years old 31,700 34,500 8.8%
Over 85 4,400 4,700 6.8%
Total 161,200 163,700 1.55%

Page 129



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 21

 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

No. No. No. £000’s
Physical Support 18 - 64 632 650 670 722
Learning Disability Support 18 - 64 653 655 668 630
Mental Health Support 18 - 64 195 200 205 190
Physical Support 65+ 3,066 3,127 3,189 2,337
Learning Disability Support 65+ 78 79 80 38
Mental Health Support  65+ 136 136 136 0
Total 4,760 4,847 4,948 3,917

Number of Adult Service Users Cost of 
Increased 

Service Users 
by average 
placement

 The total growth requirement over the next 2 financial years is £3.9m for Adults with 
Physical and Mental Disabilities. . The Local Authority has entered into a pooled fund with 
the Clinical Commissioning Group and have been successful in receiving transformation 
funding from Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (more detail is 
provided in section 2.2.2 page 22. The expectation is that the development of Integrated 
Services will help reduce the average cost of placements, reduce duplication and increase 
preventative work. 

The service is reviewing delivery models over and above the transformation programme, 
the focus being expensive and out of borough placements. The overall aim of the service 
over the next 5 years is to reduce the cost of expensive placements and bring service users 
back into the borough. This will be the focus along with alternative delivery models which 
will be led by the Integrated Commissioning Board responsible for Strategic 
Commissioning for Adults. 

The service work closely with the provider market and there are anticipated future labour 
market issues around the filling of caring roles in both residential and community care 
settings. 

Assistive technology is being rolled out and is planned to reduce the demand on traditional 
models of care. 

The service will continue to work closely with the provider market to manage workforce 
issues going forward, including the impact of increases to the national living wage, the 
potential impact of the current legal challenge around sleep-in payments and the changes 
to holiday pay.

Demand for Services

The Council’s Place Plan highlights that residents are living longer, but compared to the rest 
of England and Wales we live shorter and less healthy lives. In some parts of our borough 

Page 130



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 22

there is a 10 year3 difference in life expectancy when comparing our most deprived areas to 
our more affluent. A key pressure on services is the increasing demands for adult social care 
and health services for the most vulnerable and deprived residents. Improvements in delivery 
of these services are a priority for the integration of social care and health services through the 
Pooled Fund. It is, however, unclear whether resources allocated to our Council will be 
sufficient to cover additional burdens and pressures in future years.

Welfare Reform

The Welfare Reform agenda is likely to continue to place additional demands on our Council’s 
services as well as impacting on local authority finances. Deprivation is becoming more 
widespread across our borough with an increased proportion of the population living in the 
most deprived 10% of the country4. This increasing level of deprivation affects delivery for a 
number of services, including housing, benefits, adult skills, children’s and adult social care. 
The Discretionary Crisis Fund budget of £588k provides funding to support residents in crisis.

Housing Benefit/Local Council Tax Support Scheme Administration Grants

The Council receives grants from Central Government for the administration of Housing Benefit 
and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme. The Council has yet to receive notification of the 
level of grants for 2020/21 and future years. Any shortfall in the grant received compared to 
the amounts estimated will be funded corporately.

Pay Inflation

The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 2% per annum for 
2020/21 and future years. Any settlement above the assumed increase would increase the 
expenditure requirement for the Council. Every change of 1% equates to approximately £700k. 

The budget also reflects the Council’s commitment to pay, based on the Local Living Wage 
Rates for employees. The National Living Wage to increase by 4.9% from £7.83 to £8.21 per 
hour from April 2019.  The Rochdale Living Wage for 2019/20 is £9 per hour.

Increments

The Council’s operates a biennial incremental progression policy.

Superannuation Rates

The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed to remain at the current level of 
20.5% for the MTFS period.

3 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21
4 Place Plan (for the Borough) 2016-21

Page 131



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 23

Price Inflation

The budget assumes 0% inflation per annum across the majority of the Council’s non-pay 
expenditure budgets. Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be 
considered on a case by case basis. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges

Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 2020/21 and future 
years no increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges has been assumed.  Services were 
requested to review the level of their charges to identify any opportunities to increase charges 
above nil inflation, in order to contribute towards bridging the budget gap.

Budget Growth/Pressures

The MTFS allows for estimated growth in Adult Care, Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods 
budgets as a result of demographic issues and the growth in the number of properties in the 
borough. The MTFS also recognises the estimated financial implications of demand pressures 
on Adult and Children’s Services budgets.

Revenue borrowing costs of Capital Programme

The Capital Programme is summarised in Section 4. The budget assumes revenue borrowing 
costs of £1.4m resulting from 2020/21 Capital Programme. If additional capital bids are 
approved that increase the level of revenue borrowing costs, the updated budget gap will be 
reported to Members.

2.5 Forecast gap between resources and service spend

The MTFS forecasts that over the next five years from 2020/21 to 2024/25 there will be a 
shortfall between the resources we can raise from local taxes and government funding 
(resources available)  compared to the amount we need to spend on local services (budget 
requirement). 

The assumptions that underpin the Council’s budget gap have been reviewed in line with the 
latest available information, including the impact of the Spending Round 2019 announced by the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer on 4th September 2019. This has been combined with the latest 
HMRCCG budget gap to produce an overall budget gap for the locality. Any forecast gap in 
respect of the Council’s budget will need to be addressed by the Council as part of balancing 
the budget each year.

Table 8 summarises the current estimated Overall Budget Gap, split between the Pooled Fund 
and Non Pooled Fund budgets. 

Page 132



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 24

Table 8 Overall Budget Gap

   

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Pooled Fund 14.754 22.167 23.057

Non Pooled
LA 4.434 4.544 4.855
CCG 3.700 6.400 6.400
Total Non Pooled 8.134 10.944 11.255

Total Budget Gap - July Cabinet 22.888 33.111 34.312

Pooled Fund 
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -0.498 5.008 4.395
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions -5.319 -5.319 -0.744

Non Pooled
Changes to LA Gap Assumptions -2.626 -0.574 -0.832
Changes to CCG Gap assumptions 0.000 0.000 1.400

Revised Gap

Pooled Fund 8.937 21.856 26.708

Non Pooled
LA 1.808 3.970 4.023
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800
Total Non Pooled 5.508 10.370 11.823

Total Budget Gap 14.445 32.226 38.531

The savings proposals for 2020/21 currently being considered include a number of HMRCCG 
proposals which are pipeline projects. A one-off provision of £2m has been included in the 
2020/21 budget to mitigate the Council’s potential liability if the savings proposals approved by 
the Integrated Commissioning Board are not achieved. The requirement for this provision in 
2020/21 and future years will be continue to be reviewed throughout the budget process. 

There remains significant uncertainty around the level of funding that the Council will receive 
from Central Government from 2021/22 onwards. The assumptions will be continually reviewed 
and updated as further information is received on the Government’s Spending Review and the 
reforms to Local Government Funding planned for 2021/22.

Table 9 summarises the movement in the Overall Budget Gap compared to the position reported 
to Cabinet 30th July 2019. 

Page 133



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 25

Table 9 Movement in Overall Budget Gap

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Total Budget Gap - July Cabinet 22.888 33.111 34.312

Changes to LA Gap Assumptions
Adult Care Pressures 4.108 4.108 4.108
Continuation of Family Services Model 0.229 0.229 0.229
Pension Contribution assumptions -0.500 -0.500 -0.500
Savings Outside the Process -1.185 -1.254 -1.254
Continuation of existing Social Care funding in 2020/21 -3.002 0.000 0.000
Additional Social Care funding 2020/21 from Spending Review -4.618 0.000 0.000
Core Settlement funding assumptions -1.037 -0.986 -0.908
Funding of Increments 0.000 1.000 0.000
Provision for ICB savings 2.000 0.000 0.000
Council Tax increase assumption reduced to 1.99% 0.881 1.837 1.888

-3.124 4.434 3.563

Changes to CCG Gap Assumptions
Contingency Reductions -2.500 -2.500 -2.500
CCG budget gap increase 0.000 0.000 5.975
Ongoing Impact of 2019/20 Savings -1.688 -1.688 -1.688
Approved Schemes Within Existing Programme -1.131 -1.131 -1.131

-5.319 -5.319 0.656

Updated Budget Gap 14.445 32.226 38.531

Page 134



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 26

Part 3:  How will the Council meet the Financial Challenge?

The Council will meet the financial challenge contained within this MTFS by having a robust Revenue 
Budget Plan and Savings Programme.

3.1 Revenue Budget Plan

3.1.1 Budget Timetable

The Council’s annual budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March each year. 
This is a statutory requirement; the Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget for the 
following financial year. The Council has in place an embedded budget setting process which 
begins in July with approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the budget 
is to be based. These are used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position.

Reports are provided to Cabinet, and reviewed by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny, regularly 
throughout the financial year which set out the timetable, assumptions on both funding and 
spending changes, based on realistic projections.

These assumptions are then applied to current service budgets and once funding has been 
estimated this gives an understanding of any potential budget gap. From this the savings 
programme is determined and reports are provided to members through Cabinet, Corporate 
Overview & Scrutiny, and Joint Consultative Negotiation Group to provide savings proposals for 
consultation to meet the budget gap.

Feedback following consultation is reported to Cabinet and will be submitted to full Council as 
part of the Budget Council in February.

Budget updates are reviewed and assumptions updated throughout the year based upon latest 
information available e.g. the Government’s Autumn Budget, the Local Government Finance 
Settlement, new legislation, etc. 

Implications of the capital programme are included in these budgets, as are service growth and 
pressures.  

Final recommendations are then made by Cabinet to Budget Council. 

Services are notified of their approved budgets following Budget Council in February.
 

Table 10 summarises the key timetable dates

Page 135



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 27

Table 10 Key Budget Setting Timetable Dates

    

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2019

October

Key Meetings

Consultation

Corporate O&S 28th October
Cabinet 29th October
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) 29th October

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 for consultation
2. Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 for consultation
3. Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23 
4. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25

Consultation Starts 30th October (45 days)

November

Key Meetings Corporate O&S 26th November
Cabinet 3rd December

1. Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23 - for consultation

December Consultation 13th December formal consultation ends

2020

February

Key Meetings - post 
consultation

Post consultation reports

Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 26th February

1. Tresury Management Strategy 2020/21
2. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2020/21
5.Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23
6. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 2020/21
7. Savings Programme 2020/21 -2021/22 post consultation
8. Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23 post consultation
9. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 post consultation

  
3.1.2 Budget Guidelines

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue budgets for individual 
services are prepared consistently. These guidelines contain details of the assumptions that are 
to be made in setting the revenue budget and also set out broad principles that are to be adhered 
to. 

3.1.3  Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2020/21 – 2024/25

The budget setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is important 
that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, reasonable and consistently 
applied. The budget assumptions are applied corporately to service budgets, with individual 
exceptions on a case by case basis for specific contracts. 
The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of expenditure 
and anticipated levels of resources, which are summarised in Tables 11a and 11b. 

Page 136



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 28

Table 11a Summary of Key Budget Assumptions

Budget 
assumption for the 
MTFS

Assumption applied

Council Tax  General purposes - maximum level as allowed by the 
referendum limit 
Adult Social Care precept - in line with the maximum 
referendum limit

Business Rates 
income

Increased in line with CPI inflationary increases to the 
business rates multiplier at September each year

Government Grants In line with information provided in the Local Government 
Finance Settlement 

Pay awards In with the proposed National Pay Settlement Agreement, 
generally 2% with higher increases for some staff at lower 
pay scales 

Superannuation 
contribution rates

In line with the three year pension re-valuation undertaken 
by the Greater Manchester Pension Fund

Inflation non pay 
(Prices)

MTFS assumes no increase in non-pay budgets in line with 
budget guidelines. Contractual arrangements and other 
significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by 
case basis 

Discretionary Fees 
& Charges

MTFS assumes no increase in Discretionary Fees and 
Charges. Directorates can propose increases in fees and 
charges as part of the savings programme.

Waste Disposal 
Levy

The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the MTFS is based 
on the latest projections provided by GMCA

PTA Levy The levy is based on current information provided by GMCA

Page 137



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 29

Table 11b Key Budget Assumptions 2020/21 to 2024/25
 

 

General Increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Social Care Precept 2.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Council Tax Increase 3.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%

Business Rates Top Up Grant 2.0% -5.8% -10.1% -13.3% -14.4%
RSG (notional - within Top-up) 2.0% -10.0% -20.0% -30.0% -40.0%

Improved Better Care Fund (£m) 11.917 10.809 10.809 10.809 10.809
Additional Social Care Funding (£m) 6.512 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500

Pay 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Contribution Rate 20.5% 20.5% 20.5% 20.5% 20.5%
Discretionary Fees & Charges 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 1.6% 1.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Underlying Passenger Transport Levy 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Council Tax

Business Rates

Other Resources

Service Budgets

2024/252023/24 2021/22 2022/23 Area of Budget 2020/21 

3.1.4 Key Budget Risks

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known levels of expenditure 
and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of these assumptions will not be received 
until November/December each year. There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget 
where risks to the projections contained in the MTFS have been identified.

The most significant of these are:

 Monitoring of the 2019/20 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates on any budget 
pressures/savings for the Council. The overall Revenue budget monitoring position, 
taking account of the projections currently being forecast by services as at the end of July 
2019, is an overspend of £7.2m. Any associated on going implications will be 
incorporated into the budget projections for 2020/21 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2020/21 is currently being considered, 
including a number of HMRCCG proposals which are pipeline projects. There is a risk to 
the overall budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the identification 

Page 138



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 30

and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year budget is to be set in February 2020 
which provides time to implement the level of savings required to balance the budget over 
the period 2020/21 to 2022/23.

 Spending Round 2019 - the estimated funding resulting from the Spending Round 
announcements has been reflected in the MFTS, but will not be confirmed until the Local 
Government Finance Settlement for 2020-21, expected in late 2019. 

 Spending Review 2020 and Local Government Funding Reforms – the impact of the 
Spending Review 2020 and Local Government Funding Reforms scheduled for 2021/22 
on the level of Government funding, including the Business Rates Top-up Grant, that the 
Council will receive from 2020/21 onwards is unknown at this stage. 

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of specific grants, including 
the Improved Better Care Fund, Additional Social Care funding and New Homes Bonus, 
received by the Council may be lower/higher than anticipated. 

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the Council Tax increase a Local 
Authority can make before a referendum of the local residents is required. The budget 
assumes a 3.99% increase in 2020/21 (1.99% increase for general purposes and 2% 
increase in respect of the social care precept); 1.99% in 2021/22 to 2024/25 (1.99% 
increase for general purposes and 0% increase for the social care precept). These 
percentage increases are included for planning purposes only, and will be reviewed by 
Cabinet leading up to a recommendation at Budget Council for each year. The impact of 
a 1% change in the level of Council Tax increase would be approximately £880k.

 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – proposals to move to a banded Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme from 2020/21 are currently being consulted on. This will have no 
financial impact for the Council. The impact on the budget of a 5% change in the 
maximum discount allowed (currently 85%) would be approximately £530k.

 Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the Greater 
Manchester 100% Retention Pilot will continue. Once the Government’s proposals for the 
Business Rates retention system for 2021/22 onwards become clear the financial 
implications will be reviewed and the budget assumptions updated.

 Demand pressures – the impact of the economic climate on the residents of Rochdale 
Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for Council and CCG services could 
impact on cost of services, as could general demographic changes. Demand pressures 
are particularly prevalent in relation to Children’s Services, Adult Care, and CCG Mental 
Health and Acute Services.

Page 139



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 31

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group within a Pooled Budget. The financial risk is that the investment in 
health and social care services does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits 
are required not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term, but also to 
contribute towards closing the budget gaps of all partners delivering health and social 
care services.

 There is continued uncertainty concerning the impact on local authorities of the UK’s 
withdrawal for European Union.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across 
Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling levels. Should Rochdale Borough 
not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the 
levy, and would lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. 

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the Council 
compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on levels of usage of 
charged for Council services could lead to income levels not being achieved.

 Manchester Airport Group dividend – the amount of dividend received will be dependent 
on the performance of the Manchester Airport Group.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications of any economic 
slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received by the Council.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the conversion of schools 
to Academies on the Council’s budget.

3.2 Savings Programme 2020/21

The Savings Programme for 2020/21 is designed to bridge the budget gap for 2020/21, to enable 
a legally balanced budget to be set by 11th March 2020, and consider savings which can 
contribute to the 2021/22 gap. 

3.2.1 Savings programme milestones

For 2020/21 savings proposals have been considered in order to meet the budget gap. 

Before considering changes that affect the workforce or front line services we review the whole 
of the budget to:

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the service;

Page 140



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 32

 Realign budgets to reflect operational activity;
 Review Corporate Budgets;
 Look for savings through commissioning and procurement activity.

3.2.2 Savings proposals will be submitted to Cabinet 29th October as a basis for consultation, as 
summarised in Table 12.

Table 12 Savings Programme 2020/21

 

 
3.3 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

3.3.1 The estimated Budget gap is based on the MTFS assumptions outlined in section 3.1, including 
the level of Government funding for 2020/21 which is still to be confirmed. Once more information 
is available the assumptions will be reviewed in order to produce a balanced budget for 2020/21.

3.3.2 Table 13 shows the estimated Budget Gap after savings proposals. This assumes that all 
savings proposals are approved.

Page 141



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 33

Table 13 Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

    

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£m £m £m

Budget Gap before Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund 8.937 21.856 26.708

Non Pooled
Local Authority 1.808 3.970 4.023
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800

5.508 10.370 11.823

Total Budget Gap 14.445 32.226 38.531

Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund -11.324 -12.262 -12.262

Non Pooled
Local Authority -2.682 -2.907 -3.938
CCG 0.000 0.000 0.000

-2.682 -2.907 -3.938

Total Savings Proposals -14.006 -15.169 -16.200

Budget Gap after Savings Proposals

Pooled Fund -2.387 9.594 14.446

Non Pooled
Local Authority -0.874 1.063 0.085
CCG 3.700 6.400 7.800

2.826 7.463 7.885

Total Budget Gap 0.439 17.057 22.331

3.3.3 There is a need identify further saving proposals in the light of the significant budget gap 
identified for 2021/21 and 2022/23 and the continued demand pressures in relation to Children’s 
Services, Adult Care, and CCG Mental Health and Acute Services.

3.3.4 The savings proposals put forward by the CCG are currently shown against the Pooled Fund 
Gap. Work is ongoing to align the savings to the Pooled and the CCG Non Pooled budget gaps. 

Page 142



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 34

3.4 Balances and Reserves Strategy 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to Council for 
consideration immediately prior to setting the Budget and Council Tax. A report will be submitted 
to Cabinet in February 2020 on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of general 
balances and reserves.  The report aims to ensure that Council is aware of the opinion of the 
Chief Finance Officer regarding the robustness of the budget as proposed and the adequacy of 
general balances and reserves. This includes general balances and amounts held as specific 
reserves and contingencies. 

3.4.1   General Fund Balances 

General Fund balances are amounts set aside to cushion the impact of unexpected events and 
emergencies.  In order to assess their adequacy, a systematic approach has been adopted.  
This approach is based on the identification of the key financial risks following which an amount 
of ‘potential’ exposure is calculated based on the impact of the risk and the possibility of its 
occurrence.  It should however be noted that this is not a precise science and that local 
circumstances, the strength of financial reporting arrangements and the Council’s track record 
in financial management will also be a key influence on the actual potential of any individual risk 
materialising.  The net value of the potential exposure is currently estimated at £17m.

The key financial risks leading to the current projected requirement of £17m General Fund 
balances were detailed in a report to Cabinet 12th February 2019 on the robustness of the budget 
and the adequacy of general balances and reserves, under the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The level of balances reflects the potential financial risks associated with 
the timing of the delivery of the health and social care integration benefits/efficiencies. On this 
basis it if felt prudent to identify this as a risk at this stage. The risks have been reviewed during 
the Autumn/Winter as part of the Budget process. 

3.4.2 Earmarked Reserves

In addition to general balances, the Council holds a number of earmarked reserves.  These are 
resources that have been set aside to fund specific issues that may arise in the future. It is 
important that the Council makes best uses of all the resources it has and therefore where it is 
clear that a reserve is no longer required then the resources can be released to provide one-off 
support to the Revenue Budget. 

The Council’s budget setting process includes an annual review of amounts held in earmarked 
reserves. This ensures that resources continue to be set aside only where there is a clear 
continuing need to do so. 

Some of the key reserves are referred to below:

 Equalisation Reserve - This reserve has been established to assist the Authority in 
managing its budget requirement for future years and smoothing the impact of savings 
requirement through the commitment of one off funds that become available, e.g. from in 

Page 143



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 35

year underspends.  The level of the reserve is reviewed as part of the budget process with 
contributions increased or decreased as necessary. 

 Insurance Reserve - this is required to cover potential liabilities arising from the need to 
finance costs (e.g. claims and premium payments) associated with insurable risk and the 
self-funding of general corporate risks. The level of the reserve is reviewed as part of the 
budget process with contributions increased or decreased as necessary. 

 Schools Reserves – school balances are reviewed on an annual basis.  The current policy 
of the Schools Forum provides for balances above agreed limits to be clawed back and 
redistributed to all schools. This is a ring fenced reserve.

 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Reserves - This reserve is the cumulative amount of 
unapplied funding received to date which will be utilised to finance the schools and street 
lighting PFI schemes over the whole life of the projects. This is a ring fenced reserve.

A detailed analysis of the Council’s balances and reserves is carried out as part of the budget 
setting process and the report provided to Budget Council each February under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to provide assurance that the level of reserves and balances are 
appropriate.

3.4.3 Reserves Policy

The Council’s policy on balances and reserves is outlined within the MTFS principles as 
follows:

 Our Council will maintain general balances at a level to mitigate risks to cover any 
major unforeseen expenditure. The approach to be adopted to be based on the 
identification of the key financial risks following which an amount of ‘potential’ 
exposure is calculated based on the impact of the risk and the possibility of its 
occurrence 

 Our Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific purposes which are 
consistent with achieving key priorities. To ensure the Council makes  best uses of all 
the resources it has if a reserve is no longer required then the resources can be 
released to provide one-off support to the Revenue Budget

 The use and level of general balances and earmarked reserves will be reviewed at 
least annually.

 Our Council will seek to balance its revenue budget over the period of the MTFS 
without reliance on the use of general reserves and contain overall Council spending 
within original estimates. However, the Council will utilise funds from the Equalisation 
Reserve to smooth the impact of one off savings, long term cost pressures and 
transformational efficiencies agreed as part of the Savings Programme proposals.

Page 144



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 36

3.4.4   Provisions

Provisions are amounts set aside by the Council to meet the cost of a future liability, for which 
the timing of the payment is uncertain. The amounts represent the best estimate of that liability 
where an exact cost is not able to be determined. In line with the Code of Practice, the provision 
is charged to service revenue accounts in the year it is established. When the liability falls due, 
the costs are charged directly to the provision. The two material provisions are:

 Insurances – this represents amounts set aside by the Council to meet obligations 
arising in respect of Employers Public Liability and motor vehicle claims. 

 Business Rates Rateable Value – this is for potential backdated liability of refunding 
ratepayers who appeal successfully against the rateable value on the Business Rates 
hereditaments rating list. 

3.5 Commercial property investment strategy

In recognition of the continuing financial limitations due to reductions in public funding, the 
Council has implemented a commercial property investment strategy.

This is designed to achieve rental income and revenue savings from acquiring an investment 
portfolio, whilst contributing to the Council’s overall regeneration aims for the borough. The 
Council has approved funding via the capital programme in order to achieve these aims. The 
investments made to date have all been within the borough of Rochdale, and as such have 
contributed to the aim of supporting economic growth within the local area. The financial return 
generated has been utilised to support the provision of services for the residents of Rochdale, 
and it is planned that this will continue into future financial years. 

Further details are outlined in the Council’s Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy.

Page 145



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 37

Part 4: The Council’s Capital Programme

4.1 The Capital Programme for 2020/21 to 2022/23 takes into consideration the priorities of the 
Council and the resources available. The setting of the 2020/21 capital budget will follow the 
steps below: 

 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 27th February 2019.
 Review of 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes – Finance Service has worked with Directorates 

to review 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes taking into account spend to date and previous re-
phasing of budget on the schemes.

 Consideration of new schemes.
 Member Review Session.  

The result of the above steps will be to recommend a proposed Capital Programme for 2020/21, 
and provisional Capital Programmes for 2021/22 and 2022/23 to Cabinet on 3rd December 2019.

4.2 When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across financial years, the 
scheme funding will be approved across these financial years and will therefore be considered 
as a priority in future years. Any reduction in the funding of these schemes will only be 
considered where contracts have not been entered into.

4.3 The Capital budget is created in line with the Council’s priorities:

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic growth 
potential and continue to regenerate our town centres.

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality building and 
public space.

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising maximum value 
from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers and other building users.

4.4 The provisional 2020/21 Capital Programme of £57.0m and the provisional programme for 
2021/22 were approved at Budget Council 27th February 2019, and are shown in Table 14. Table 
14 shows the provisional capital expenditure by Directorate, and how the expenditure is 
proposed to be funded. 

Page 146



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 38

Table 14 Summary of Capital Programme

 

 2020/21  2021/22
£'000 £'000

Adult Care 2,440 2,440
Children's Services 20,526 7,516
Economy 18,714 7,970
Neighbourhoods 12,763 8,504
Public Health 676 0
Resources 1,860 0
Total Requirement 56,979 26,430

Prudential Borrowing 17,059 13,352
External Grant and Contributions 24,933 11,923
Invest to Save 14,462 1,000
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 525 155
Total Funding 56,979 26,430

Funding Source

Directorate

4.5 The Capital schemes are categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - These schemes receive annual allocations either as a result of external 
funding, or because the capital investment is essential for the Council to maintain current 
service delivery or to meet statutory responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - These schemes are multi-year schemes that 
commenced prior to 2020/21.

 New Scheme - These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional funding for the 
2020/21 capital programme.

4.6 Borrowing of £17.1m is required to fund expenditure relating to specific schemes in provisional 
Capital Programme 2020/21. The revenue cost of this borrowing is approximately £1.4m per 
annum.

4.7 An updated proposed Capital Programme for 2020/21, and provisional Capital Programmes for 
2021/22 and 2022/23 will be submitted to Cabinet 3rd December 2019, as a basis for 
consultation.

Page 147



Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 39

P

Part 5: Strategies Linked to the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy is closely linked to a number of other key strategies of the 
Council:

Treasury Management Strategy 

Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy

Asset Strategy

Page 148

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/treasury-management-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/capital-Investment-strategy.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/policies-strategies-and-reviews/strategies/corporate/Pages/asset-strategy.aspx


Medium Term Financial Strategy
2020/21 to 2024/25

rochdale.gov.uk 40

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk
Page 149



1

Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 29 October 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance  
Report Author Julie Murphy  
Public Document

Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Cabinet Members with: 

 Recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the 
budget gap for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet considers and notes the saving proposals 
contained in this report, and for those proposals which require consultation, 
note the timetable and process detailed in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2020/21 to Budget Council and provisional budgets 
for 2021/22 to 2022/23. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 
2020/21 by the 11 March 2020.  To enable the achievement of this statutory 
requirement savings proposals are considered to reduce the expenditure of 
the Council.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

Timetable

The Budget process begins in July with approval, by Cabinet, of the 
assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are used 
as a part of the determination of the overall budget position and are currently 
being incorporated into Service budgets.

Page 150

Agenda Item 12



2

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

Throughout the year we will consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
from Central Government and other changes, including local decisions. The 
updated budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet 
during the year and in February 2020 with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who will in turn set the budget. The timetable for the Revenue Budget 
and Savings Programme is provided at Appendix 1.

Savings proposals that will not meet the Savings Programme timetable will be 
implemented through the Council’s decision making processes. 

Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22

Budget Council 27 February 2019 approved provisional budgets for 2020/21 
and 2021/22.The budget position of the Council is reviewed throughout the 
budget process as more information becomes available. Cabinet received the 
first update in July and a further update will be provided elsewhere on this 
agenda.

During April to September Directorates have engaged in producing the saving 
proposals contained in this report for Cabinet Members to consider. A number 
of Budget Review Sessions have been held where officers and members have 
scrutinised service functions, finance and performance matters for each 
Directorate to inform the process and support the delivery of a balanced budget 
for 2020/21.

Saving Proposals are classified as follows:
 Saving proposals not requiring consultation;
 Service Delivery proposals requiring public / stakeholder consultation;
 Workforce proposals requiring workforce consultation; 
 Service Delivery with Workforce implication proposals requiring public / 

stakeholder consultation prior to workforce consultation.

Savings proposals are submitted to Cabinet and the Integrated Commissioning 
Board (ICB) for approval to consult on 29 October 2019. Table 1 summarises 
the savings proposals being considered within this report to contribute towards 
meeting the budget gap for 2020/21 to 2021/22.

Page 151



3

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

Table 1 Savings Proposals 2020/21 to 2021/22

The proposals not requiring service consultation are proposals which:

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the 
service;

 Generate additional income for the Council without impacting on 
users;

 Improve the efficiency in service delivery.

The proposals which do not require consultation generate on going savings of 
£2.467m and £0.220m one-off savings in 2020/21, and a further £0.358m 
ongoing and £0.225m one-off savings in 2021/22, and are detailed in the 
private report provided separately on this Agenda.

Saving proposals with Service Delivery implications totaling £0.019m in 
2020/21 will be subject to consultation from 30 October 2019 with either the 
public and/or stakeholders as appropriate and are detailed in the private report 
provided separately on this agenda.

Savings proposals with Workforce only implications totaling £0.187m in 
2020/21 and a further £0.030m in 2021/22 will be subject to consultation from 
30 October 2019 with affected employees and the Trade Unions through the 
Service consultative groups these proposals are detailed in the private report 
provided separately on this agenda. Following consultation these proposals will 
be implemented through the Council’s Delegated Decision Making process and 
will not come back to Cabinet for approval to implement.

Page 152



4

4.2.9

4.2.10

4.2.11

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

Savings proposals with Service Delivery and Workforce implications totaling 
£0.033m in 2020/21 will be subject to consultation from 30 October 2019 with 
the public and/or stakeholders as appropriate when this consultation has 
concluded workforce consultation will commence as detailed in 4.2.9 above. 
These proposals are detailed in the private report provided separately on this 
agenda.

The savings proposals for approval by the Integrated Commissioning Board 
include a number of Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) pipeline projects, 
which may be subject to change.

A report detailing the outcome of consultation will be submitted to Cabinet 12 
February 2020.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the individual reports outline any 
alternatives considered. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as 
the Council is legally required to set a balanced budget.

Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Council is required to set a lawful budget for 2020/21 by the by 11 March 
2020 and there is a risk if we do not responsibly put forward proposals for 
consideration to meet the budget reductions/pressures.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual 
detailed reports.  To manage this risk we will supply Cabinet members with 
copies of all available implications to make informed decisions.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 

Page 153



5

6.4

the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation 
requirements and equality impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a failure on 
the part of the Council to fulfill statutory duties.

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third parties 
which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that does not prove 
possible) can only be terminated by substantial notice periods and 
consider the financial implications of any variations.

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property assets. Some 
have restrictions on usage, some have conditions attached to gifts and 
planning restrictions might apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be 
separation of the Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will involve 
statutory consultations.

 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including staff related 
matters).

If there are workforce implications arising for the proposals contained within 
this report, these are summarised below:

 Some of these proposals could potentially result in a reduction in the 
number of established posts within the Council and depending on the 
outcome of consultation and final decisions made these will be deleted 
as a consequence of these proposals via the Delegated Decision Making 
process. 

 The Council will apply its established policies and procedures to identify 
which posts are identified as potentially redundant and which employees 
will be placed at risk of redundancy. This will include the application of 
the Council’s redundancy selection criteria where appropriate.

 Where posts proposed to be deleted are occupied the employee(s) 
concerned will become at risk of redundancy and will be provided with 
the appropriate support.

 Through the application of these policies and procedures, the Council will 
where possible seek to minimize the number of employees who may be 
compulsory redundant.  In this respect, the Council will seek to provide 
suitable alternative employment and will seek to achieve reductions by 
voluntary measures wherever possible, by seeking volunteers for early 
retirement/voluntary redundancy in areas where staff are affected by the 
proposals.

 The proposals will be subject to full consultation with staff and trade 
unions in line with statutory requirements.   It is considered that the total 
number of jobs affected during the budget setting process is likely to be 
below 100. The Council is preparing to comply with the required statutory 
minimum consultation period of 30 days for less than 100 redundancies 

Page 154



6

before making final decisions on its proposals.  In addition, the Council 
will also ensure that the consultation process is meaningful and 
commences when potential redundancies are contemplated, that full 
consideration is given to the outcome and any comments received before 
final decisions are made regarding implementation, which are also legal 
requirements.

Equalities Impacts

The Council is required to assess/analyse the potential effect on quality of 
its proposals at each stage of the process. Equality Impact Assessments 
(EIA) have been undertaken and for all relevant proposals the EIAs have 
been produced for Members for consideration. The Council must consider 
these assessments and have due regard to the general equality duty in the 
decision making process.

The Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) is a working document which is to 
be continually developed from the onset of the development of the proposal 
to the consultation and then the final decision making stage. This means that 
as further details become available through consultation, the EIA is updated 
and finalised before a final decision is reached. 

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals   affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in previous 
years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff affected 
by the savings proposals in 2020/21 and 2021/22.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings 
proposals, at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan or 
other policies.

6.5

6.6

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Consultation is to be undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service 
users as appropriate. Consultation will commence on 30 October 2019 and 
end on 13 December 2019. 

The report will be presented for consultation to Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 28 October 2019. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

For Further Information Contact: Julie Murphy, Tel: 01706 925174, 
Julie.murphy2@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Appendix 1

Page 155



7

Revenue Budget and Savings Programme Timetable

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2019

October

Cabinet Meetings

Consultation

Corporate O&S 28th October
Cabinet 29th October
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) 29th October

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 for consultation
2. Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 for consultation
3. Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23 
4. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25

Consultation Starts 30th October (45 days)

November

Cabinet Meetings Corporate O&S 26th November
Cabinet 3rd December

1. Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23 - for consultation

December Consultation 13th December formal consultation ends

2020

February

Cabinet Meetings - post 
consultation

Post consultation reports

Approval

Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 26th February

1. Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21
2. MTFS 2020/21 - 2024/25
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2020/21
5.Revenue Budget Update 2020/21 - 2022/23
6. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 2020/21
7. Savings Programme 2020/21 -2021/22 post consultation
8. Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2022/23 post consultation
9. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2020/21 post consultation

Council 26th February

Page 156



Document is Restricted

Page 157

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 264

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 299

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 303

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 304

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Update on new school sites
	Append. 3 Equalities Impact Assessment
	Append. 1 Edgar Wood Red Line
	Append. 2 Autism school Red line

	7 Adoption of Revised Statement of Community Involvement
	Append. 1 - Schedule of Comments & Proposed Changes

	8 Library Service Strategy 2019 - 2022
	Library Service strategy 2019 - 22

	9 Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022
	EIA Initial Screening for Corporate Plan Sept 2019
	Corporate Plan FINAL

	10 Discretionary Fees & Charges
	Append. 1 for Discretionary Fees & Charges

	11 Budget Update and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25
	Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2024-25 FINAL - revised 281019

	12 Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22
	14 Savings Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22 (Private)
	Appendix 2 - ICB Savings Proposals 2020-21 Cabinet Private

	15 Lease arrangements for the Coroners Hosted Service
	Append. 1 for Lease arrangements for the Coroners Hosted Service
	Append. 2 for Lease arrangements for the Coroners Hosted Service


